
 
 

AGENDA 
ADA TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MONDAY SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 at 7:00 P.M.  

ADA TOWNSHIP HALL 
7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
III. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
IV. ROLL CALL 
V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
VI. GENERAL TOWNSHIP BUSINESS 

Motion to approve minutes and accept and file reports/communications under consent 
agenda 
 
A. APPROVAL OF TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES 

1. Regular Board Meeting Minutes – September 12, 2022 
 

B. RECEIVE AND FILE VARIOUS REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes – August 18, 2022 
2. Utility Advisory Board Meeting Minutes – July 21, 2022 
3. Michigan Department of Treasury Audit Letter of Deficiency – September 14, 

2022  
 

VII. APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 
A.  Township General Warrants  

 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit of 3 Minutes Per Speaker)  

 
IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS –  

A. Roselle Park Update & Request to Extend Project Completion Date 
 

X. PUBLIC HEARING – NONE  
 

XI. NEW BUSINESS  
A. Presentation of FY 2021 Audit – Dan Veldhuizen, Siegfried Crandall 
B. Resolution R-092622-1: A Resolution to Extend the Downtown Ada Social District 

Dates/Hours of Operation 
C. Ordinance O-092622-1: An Ordinance to Rezone 3201 Egypt Valley Ave NE (Parcel 

#41-15-05-400-002) from RP-1 to RP-1/Planned Unit Development (PUD) 



D. Resolution R-092622-2: A Resolution to Approve Preliminary PUD Plan for the Hidden 
Lakes at Ada LLC Planned Unit Development located at 3201 Egypt Valley Ave. NE 
(Parcel #41-15-05-400-002)  

E. Consider Purchase of Fire Department Boots from Apollo Fire Equipment for an 
Amount Not to Exceed $7,760.00 

F. Consider Purchase of Fire Department Turnout Gear from West Shore Fire Inc. for an 
Amount Not to Exceed $10,605.00 

G. Consider Recommendation from Information Technology Committee to Approve 
Managed I.T. Services Proposal from I.T. Right  

H. Township Manager Review – Personnel Committee 
 

XII. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
A. Township Manager Report – September 21, 2022  

 
XIII. CLOSED SESSION  

a. Consider Written Legal Opinion related to 1100 Pettis Ave Property   
 

XIV. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 

XV. OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit of 3 Minutes Per Speaker) 
 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 



ADA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 18, 2022 REGULAR MEETING 

A regular meeting of the Ada Township Planning Commission was held on Thursday,  
August 18, 2022 at 5:30 p.m., at the Ada Township Hall Assembly Room, 7330 Thornapple River 
Dr., Ada Michigan.  

I. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Korth called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL

Members Present:  Burton, Butterfield, Easter, Heglund, Jacobs, Korth 
Member Easter arrived at 5:36 p.m. 
Staff Present:  Buckley, Said 
Others Present:  4 

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by Jacobs, supported by Burton, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried. 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE JULY 21, 2022, REGULAR MEETING

Moved by Burton, supported by Heglund, to approve the July 21, 2022, minutes as presented. 
Motion carried. 

V. PUBLIC HEARING - none

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Proposed Text Amendment to Section 78-20 of the Zoning Ordinance
Regarding Accessory Buildings

Planning Director Said explained that the request for proposed text amendment arose in part due to a 
recent request regarding a proposed accessory building in a front yard, along with inquiries for 
commercial accessory buildings. 

Said summarized that at the July 21 Planning Commission meeting, the commission was agreeable to 
the following recommended text alterations: 

* Site plan approval by the Planning Commission for proposed front yard accessory
buildings (allowed only in AGP, RP-1, RP-2, and RR districts).

* Special use approval by the Planning Commission for all proposed front yard accessory
buildings not matching the design of the dwelling unit (as determined by the
Zoning Administrator).

VI B1



Ada Township Planning Commission      
Minutes of the August 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

* New language to identify accessory building requirements in non-residential zoning districts.

At the July 21 meeting, the commission asked the planning department to provide further information 
about possibly altering accessory building side wall height also.  In response, Said researched the special 
use requests and provided history on wall height special use approvals over the last several years and 
noted that from staff’s perspective the number and frequency did not rise to the level of mandating a 
Zoning Ordinance change. 

There was discussion amongst commissioners regarding; the difference between a variance request vs. 
special use approval, and the difference between an addition vs. an accessory building. The 
commissioners agreed that they liked the procedure to go before the Planning Commission for site plan 
approval and/or special use approval, and that the proposed changes/updates provided more creativity 
and was an improvement to the current process. 

Moved by Easter, supported by Jacobs, to recommend to the Township Board, approval of the 
proposed revisions to the Zoning Ordinance (Sec. 78-20) on accessory buildings and uses as 
presented.  Motion carried. 

2. Site Plan Review, Installation of a 12’ x 28’ Substation Control Enclosure
in the R3-Medium Density Single-Family Residential District, 7050 Rix
Street SE, Parcel No. 41-15-33-226-019, Consumers Energy (Thornapple
Substation), Joe Lawson

Said gave an update on the status of the site plan review and informed that the applicant 
advised that the substation request was still on hold within the Consumers Energy management 
team. 

VII. NEW BUSINESS - none

VIII. COMMISSION MEMBER / STAFF REPORTS

Said introduced Mr. James Moyer to the commission and shared that James is a candidate for 
appointment to the Planning Commission, which would take place at the next Township Board 
meeting on September 12.  The commissioners welcomed Mr. Moyer. 

Said gave an update on the Master Plan process and the next steps.  Said noted that public input 
has been magnificent.  Easter shared that she also participated and that she was excited about 
all the new ideas.  Easter said she was impressed with the intelligent and creative marketing by 
Progressive AE.  Commissioners concurred that they liked to see the Ada enhancements and felt 
good about the process. 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT

Andy Steenstra, 6781 3 Mile Road, said he was in attendance for the ZBA meeting about the 
accessory building in the front yard of the property at 6679 3 Mile Road, and the neighbors of 
the applicant were all in support of the proposed building with upgraded materials.  Mr. Steenstra 
shared concern about the text revisions for accessory buildings/front yard use, in that the 
decisions to approve or deny rely on the Planning Commission and its members and he would 
like to see examples of exceptions be put in writing. 



Ada Township Planning Commission      
Minutes of the August 18, 2022 Regular Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

Said noted that a number of Mr. Steenstra’s comments were factually incorrect, including how a 
front yard is defined. 

There was brief commission discussion to understand the definition of what/where/how ‘front 
yard’ is established and related zoning clarifications. 

X. ADJOURNMENT

Moved by Easter, supported by Burton, to adjourn the meeting at 6:15 p.m.  Motion carried. 

Respectfully submitted,  

_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Ada Township Clerk 

rs:eb 



UTILITY ADVISORY BOARD 
Thursday, July 21, 2022 

8:30 – 9:30 am 
1300 Market Ave SW 

MINUTES 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 8:35 am by Mr. Hurt. 

Members Present 

James Ouzts, Kolene Allen, Alex Fleet, Darrel Schmalzel, Mark Bennett, Sam Giffel, Doug LaFave, James 
Hurt, Wayne Jernberg, James Kirkwood, Mike Grenier, Chuck Schroeder, Jeff McCaul, William Kaiser, Tim 
Burkman, Tai Verbrugge  

Others Present 

Tiffany Berry (City of GR) 

Approval of Minutes – June 16 

Motion to approve the minutes by Mr. Jernberg, second by Mr. Grenier. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

Public Comments on Agenda Items 

None 

Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the agenda by Mr. Jernberg, second by Mr. Grenier. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

Adoption of the 2022 Water/Sewer Rate Study USD Size Recommendations 

Mr. Verbrugge presented the USD Size recommendations for the 2022 Water/Sewer Rate Study. The maps 

per partner community and tracking sheet highlighting historical changes are attached to the agenda.  Mr. 

Jernberg noted that in the tracking sheet, Tallmadge Township’s USD Size increased, not decreased. The 

utility finance team will make the edit.  

Mr. Jernberg said that the USD Size affects the new assets online and rates for each partner community.  

VI B2



Motion to adopt the 2022 Water/Sewer Rate Study USD Size Recommendations by Mr.Jernberg, second 

by Mr. Grenier.  

MOTION CARRIED. 

Updates 

June Awards – Jeff McCaul 

In June, seven projects were awarded; the projects include the reconstruction of Ottawa Avenue and 

Norwich Avenue, the Pretreatment Improvement project at the Lake Michigan Filtration Plant, 

Biodigester, and Pressure Reducing Valve Replacement at the Alger Pressure District. The Pretreatment 

Improvement project at the Lake Michigan Filtration Plant was awarded in 2018, but due to delays and 

other contractor issues, an additional $1.7 million is needed to complete the project.  

The second award is for a $1.1 million increase to the Biodigester project for purchasing additional pumps 

to help with the issue experienced with the thickening process and biodigester tanks.  

Kent County Community Action (KCCA) 

Mrs. Giffel gave the board an update on the Kent County Community Action (KCCA) Program for the last 

quarter of 2021. KCCA withdrew a total of $37,969 for 2021; the remaining balance of $129,161 will be 

returned to the water/sewer rates to help mitigate rate impacts for partner communities. KCCA is 

undergoing staffing changes resulting in a delay in reporting. Mrs. Giffel will provide an update for the 

calendar year 2022 at the next board meeting.  

Biodigester 

Gas is being sold to DTE, and the newly rebuilt pumps are being worked on. Staff is working with the 

prebuilt pumps to help bring the second biodigester tank online.  

A press release for the Biodigester is set to be published in August, and the press will be covering the 

project that will include a tour of the facility.  If partner communities are interested in having ESD staff 

present to their communities about the project, please get in touch with Mr.Grenier.  

State Budget FY23 



Mr. Hurt informed the members of funding in the state’s FY23 budget. The Department of Environment, 

Great Lake & Energy is allocated $48 million for lead line replacements, $7.2 million for energy efficiency 

projects, and $500k for PFAS remediation efforts.  

Public Works Summer Camp 6-9th Graders  & GRCC Water Career Program 

Mr. Jernberg said ESD and Water are hosting a Public Works Summer Camp for 6-9th graders in late July 

and early August. This initiative with GRCC educates students on water industry jobs and public services.  

The City and GRCC are working on finalizing a Memo of Understanding that would reimburse the City for 

all expenses related to the Public Works Camp and internship program. The City is finalizing details on the 

internship program that allows GRCC students to job shadow various positions in Water and ESD.  

Public Comment 

None 

Items from Members 

Mrs. Giffel said that if partner communities have questions about Cayenta or need help navigating it, 

please let her know.  

Mr. Jernberg informed the board that the EPA announced new PFAS health advisory levels for drinking 

water. EGLE is analyzing the scientific data used by the EPA to establish the health advisory levels. EGLE is 

scheduled to sample the raw water at the Filtration Plant for PFAS compounds. Various levels of PFAS 

compounds were detected during the last round of testing, but other community water supplies detected 

similar levels.   

Next Meeting –  August 18, 2022 

Due to the lack of agenda items for next month, Mr. Hurt recommends that the meeting is canceled. 

Motion to cancel the August meeting by Mr. Schmalzel, second by Mr. LaFave. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:15 by Mr. Hurt. 



VI B3





VII A











To: Ada Township Board of Trustees 
Julius Suchy, Ada Township Manager 

From: Mark Fitzpatrick, Parks Director 
Re: Change of Substantial Completion Date - Redline Exc. - Roselle Park Parking Lot 
Date: September 20, 2022 

In regards to completing the Roselle Parking lot project, we have been on hold waiting for 
approval from EGLE of a revised permit.   Earlier communications OCBA staff had with EGLE 
gave the impression that permit review process would have been completed already.  As of 
today, the staff from OCBA have not received a final update or confirmation from EGLE. 

There is still a chance we will hear from EGLE in the next few days with an approved revised 
permit, and if so, we will update everyone and proceed with the completion of the project.  Staff 
from Redline Excavating LLC have commented that they can complete the work within three 
weeks once they get going again. 

With the delay in the permit review prosses, and the related the delay in the project, we will 
clearly extend past the current “substantial completion date” of September 30 noted in the 
contract with Redline Excavating LLC.   Even if the permit gets approved this week, the work 
will continue past September 30. 

Staff from OCBA are preparing the documentation necessary to amend the contract with Redline 
Excavating LLC to note a change in the “substantial completion date” and an updated project 
schedule.  They plan to have that for us on Monday, September 26 to present at the Board 
meeting. 

We will be requesting of the Ada Township Board meeting on Monday the 26th to approve a 
change of the “substantial completion date” in the contract with Redline Excavating LLC for the 
Roselle Parking Lot project.  We hesitate to give a definitive date for that revision today having 
not received the EGLE permit approval yet.  We expect to have a revised date on Monday along 
with the update from OCBA. 

Thank you 

IX A



Township of Ada 
Kent County, Michigan 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended March 31, 2022 

XI A



CONTENTS 
 
 
 
   Page 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 3 - 5 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 6 - 13 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Government-wide financial statements: 
 Statement of net position 14 
 Statement of activities 15 
 
Fund financial statements: 
 Balance sheet - governmental funds 16 
 Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - 
  governmental funds 17  
 Statement of net position - proprietary funds 18 
 Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position - 
  proprietary funds 19 
 Statement of cash flows - proprietary funds 20 - 21 
 Statement of fiduciary net position - custodial fund 22 
 Statement of changes in fiduciary net position - custodial fund 23 
 
Notes to financial statements 24 - 40 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Budgetary comparison schedules: 
 General Fund 41 - 42 
 Public Safety Fund 43 
 Trails Fund 44 
 Parks and Open Space Fund 45 
 Parks Fund 46 
 Parks and Recreation Fund 47 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Balance sheet - component units 48 
Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances -  
 component units 49 
Budgetary comparison schedules: 
 Downtown Development Authority 50 
 Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 51 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
Township Board of Trustees 
Township of Ada, Michigan 
 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Township of Ada, Michigan (the Township), as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Township’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the contents. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component 
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township, as of March 31, 2022, and 
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Township, and to meet 
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Township’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that 
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.  
 
 
 
 



Township Board of Trustees 
Township of Ada, Michigan 
Page 2 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Township’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Township’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the contents, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 



Township Board of Trustees 
Township of Ada, Michigan 
Page 3 
 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Township’s basic financial statements. The component units’ fund financial statements are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 
 

 

 
July 21, 2022 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



Township of Ada 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
Our discussion and analysis of the Township of Ada’s (the Township) financial performance provides a narrative overview of 
the Township’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the 
Township’s financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 The Township’s total net position increased by $2,057,790 (4.7 percent) as a result of this year’s activities. The net 

position of the governmental activities increased by $1,330,533, and the net position of the business-type activities 
increased by $727,257. 

 Of the $45,501,766 total net position reported, $9,637,665 (21 percent) is available to be used to meet the Township’s 
ongoing obligations to its citizens and customers, without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling 
legislation, or other legal requirements. 

 The General Fund’s unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year was $3,230,822, which represents 87 percent 
of the actual total General Fund expenditures for the current fiscal year. 

 
Overview of the financial statements 
 
The Township’s annual report is comprised of four parts: management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial 
statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that presents statements concerning the 
component units. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the 
Township: 
 
 The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short-term 

information about the Township’s overall financial status. 
 The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the Township government, 

reporting the Township’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. 
o Governmental funds statements explain how government services, like general government and public safety, 

were financed in the short-term, as well as what remains for future spending. 
o Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the activities the 

government operates like a business, such as the sewer and water systems and construction code inspection 
services. 

o Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the Township acts 
solely as a custodian for the benefit of others to whom the resources in question belong. 

 
The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide 
more detailed data. The financial statements are followed by sections of required supplementary information and other 
supplementary information that further explain and support the information in the financial statements. 
 
A comparative analysis of the government-wide financial statements for 2022 and 2021 is also presented. 
 
Government-wide financial statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements report information about the Township as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Township’s assets and 
liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities, regardless of 
when cash is received or paid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-6- 



Township of Ada 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
The two government-wide statements report the Township’s net position and how it has changed. Net position (the 
difference between the Township’s assets and liabilities) is one way to measure the Township’s financial health, or position. 
 
 Over time, increases or decreases in the Township’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is 

improving or deteriorating, respectively. 
 To assess the overall health of the Township, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors, such as changes in 

the Township’s property tax base and the condition of the Township’s capital assets. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are divided into three categories: 
 
 Governmental activities - Most of the Township’s basic services are included here, such as police and fire protection 

and general government. Property taxes and state shared revenue finance most of these activities. 
 Business-type activities - The Township charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain services it 

provides. The Township’s sewer and water systems and construction code inspection operations are reported here. 
 Component units - The Township includes two other entities in its report - the Ada Downtown Development Authority and 

the Ada Brownfield Redevelopment Authority. Although legally separate, these “component units” are important because 
the Township is financially accountable for them. 

 
Fund financial statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Township’s most significant funds - not the 
Township as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the Township uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and 
spending for particular purposes. 
 
 Some funds are required by state law and bond agreements. 
 The Township Board establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is 

properly using certain taxes and other revenues (like the public safety millage). 
 
The Township has three types of funds: 
 
 Governmental funds. Most of the Township’s basic services are included in its governmental funds, which focus on 

(1) how cash, and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash, flows in and out, and (2) the balances left 
at year end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-
term view that helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the Township’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term 
focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information that explains the relationship between 
them. 

 
 Proprietary funds. Services for which the Township charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds. 

Proprietary funds statements, like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term and short-term financial 
information. In fact, the Township’s enterprise funds are the same as its business-type activities but provide more 
detail and additional information, such as cash flows. 

 
 Fiduciary funds. These funds are used to account for the collection and disbursement of resources, primarily property 

taxes, for the benefit of parties outside the Township. The Township is responsible for ensuring that the assets 
reported in the fiduciary funds are used for their intended purposes. The Township’s fiduciary balances and activities 
are reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. We 
exclude these activities from the Township’s government-wide financial statements because the Township cannot use 
these assets to finance its operations. 

 
 
 
 

-7- 



Township of Ada 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWNSHIP AS A WHOLE 
 
Net position 
Total net position at the end of the fiscal year was $45,501,766. Of this total, $30,870,896 represents a net investment in 
capital assets and $4,993,205 is restricted for various purposes. Consequently, unrestricted net position was $9,637,665, or 
21 percent of the total. 
 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Current and other a ssets 23,430,040$     7,306,200$       8,993,313$       11,517,835$     32,423,353$     18,824,035$     

Capi ta l  ass ets 25,351,179       23,799,257       22,061,795       19,158,420       47,412,974       42,957,677       

  

Tota l  assets 48,781,219       31,105,457       31,055,108       30,676,255       79,836,327       61,781,712       

Current and other l iabi l i ties 1,576,041         504,947            682,335            497,994            2,258,376         1,002,941         

Long-term debt outstanding 20,507,539       5,233,404         11,568,646       12,101,391       32,076,185       17,334,795       

Tota l  l iabi l i ties 22,083,580       5,738,351         12,250,981       12,599,385       34,334,561       18,337,736       

Net pos i tion:
Net inves tment in

capita l  assets 20,377,747       19,414,183       10,493,149       5,084,086         30,870,896       24,498,269       
Restricted 2,832,217         1,997,192         2,160,988         5,857,854         4,993,205         7,855,046         

Unrestri cted 3,487,675         3,955,731         6,149,990         7,134,930         9,637,665         11,090,661       

Tota l  net posi tion 26,697,639$     25,367,106$     18,804,127$     18,076,870$     45,501,766$     43,443,976$     

Business-type activities

Condensed financial information
Net position

TotalsGovernmental activities

 
 
Changes in net position 
The Township’s total revenues for the current fiscal year amounted to $13,145,334, compared to $12,027,025 in the prior 
year. Charges for services account for approximately 47 percent of the Township’s revenues, while property taxes account 
for 34 percent of the total revenues. State grants account for about 13 percent of the Township’s revenues. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-8- 



Township of Ada 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
The total cost of the Township’s programs for fiscal year 2022, covering a wide range of services, totaled $11,087,544. 
Approximately 43 percent of the Township’s costs relates to the provision of utility services. Recreation and culture and 
general government costs represent 15 and 14 percent of total expenses, respectively. 
 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Program revenues :
Charges  for s ervices 375,295$       274,370$       5,772,295$    4,943,777$    6,147,590$    5,218,147$    
Operating grants  and contributions 41,970           449,177         -                 128,376         41,970           577,553         
Capita l  grants  and contributions 632,756         1,318,640      -                 -                 632,756         1,318,640      

General  revenues :
Property taxes 4,460,614      3,210,387      -                 -                 4,460,614      3,210,387      
State grants 1,676,411      1,349,517      -                 -                 1,676,411      1,349,517      
Franchis e fees 261,104         263,627         -                 -                 261,104         263,627         
Interest (83,849)          49,920           8,738             39,234           (75,111)          89,154           
Insurance recoveries -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Tota l  revenues 7,364,301      6,915,638      5,781,033      5,111,387      13,145,334    12,027,025    

Expenses :
General  government 1,597,669      1,565,352      -                 -                 1,597,669      1,565,352      
Publ i c safety 1,079,421      1,054,567      314,510         239,450         1,393,931      1,294,017      
Publ i c works 917,075         438,444         -                 -                 917,075         438,444         
Recrea tion and cul ture 1,678,496      1,458,119      -                 -                 1,678,496      1,458,119      
Communi ty and economic   

development 204,956         164,240         -                 -                 204,956         164,240         
Interest and iss uance costs 556,151         150,144         -                 -                 556,151         150,144         
Sewer -                 -                 2,033,451      2,116,667      2,033,451      2,116,667      

Water -                 -                 2,705,815      2,565,052      2,705,815      2,565,052      

Tota l  expenses 6,033,768      4,830,866      5,053,776      4,921,169      11,087,544    9,752,035      

Changes  in net pos i tion 1,330,533$    2,084,772$    727,257$       190,218$       2,057,790$    2,274,990$    

Net pos i tion, end of year 26,697,639$  25,367,106$  18,804,127$  18,076,870$  45,501,766$  43,443,976$  

Condensed financial information
Changes in net position

Governmental activities Business-type activities Totals

 
 
Governmental activities 
Governmental activities increased the Township’s net position by $1,330,533 in the current year, compared to a $2,084,772 
increase in the prior year. The increase in net position was lower in the current year as revenues increased by $448,663, 
while expenses increased by $1,202,902. The increase in revenues is related to a $1,250,227 increase in property taxes, as 
the millage rate for trails was increased and taxable values continue to grow. The increase in property taxes was offset by a 
$407,207 reduction in operating grants, related to federal grants associated with COVID-19 in the prior year, and a 
$685,884 reduction in capital grants, most of which related to contributions associated with the new library and community 
center in the prior year. Expenses increased due to higher costs in the public works function and an increase in interest and 
related fees. Public works costs increased by $478,631, due to significant road improvements in the current year, and 
interest costs rose due to the issuance of a substantial capital improvement bond. 
 
 
 
 
 

-9- 



Township of Ada 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
The following schedule shows the costs of the Township’s three largest programs, as well as the net cost (total cost less fees 
generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost shows the burden that was placed on the Township’s 
taxpayers by each of these functions. 
 

Total cost Net cost
of services of services

General government 1,597,669$       (1,414,125)$     
Public safety 1,079,421         (1,059,541)        
Recreation and culture 1,678,496         (1,292,707)        
Other 1,678,182         (1,217,374)        

Totals 6,033,768$       (4,983,747)$      
 
The total cost of governmental activities this year was $6,033,768 compared to $4,830,866 in the prior year. After 
subtracting the direct charges to those who directly benefited from the programs ($375,295), operating grants ($41,970), 
and capital grants ($632,756), the “public benefit” portion covered by property taxes, state shared revenue, and other 
general revenues was $4,983,747. 
 
Business-type activities 
Business-type activities increased the Township’s net position by $727,257 in the current year compared to an increase of 
$190,218 in the prior year. Net position has increased because customer charges are sufficient to cover all operating and 
nonoperating costs, including depreciation. 
 
The increase in net position was higher in the current year as revenues increased by $669,646, while expenses only 
increased by $132,607. Revenues rose by $669,646, as expected, due to an increase in rates charged to customers. The 
increase in expenses was primarily related to higher contract costs.   
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWNSHIP’S FUNDS 
 
Governmental funds 
As of March 31, 2022, the Township’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $21,798,299, which 
represents an increase of $15,364,816 compared to last year’s balances. Almost all of the increase relates to proceeds from 
the issuance of capital improvement bonds which have not yet been spent. 
 
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Township. Its fund balance at the end of the fiscal year was 
$3,589,998, though unassigned fund balance amounted to $3,230,822. Revenues of $3,744,322 exceeded expenditures of 
$3,698,571, causing fund balance to increase by $45,751 in the current year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-10- 



Township of Ada 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
In addition, these other changes in fund balances should be noted: 
 The fund balance of the Public Safety Fund at the end of the fiscal year was $1,200,059, an increase of $70,387, as 

revenues of $1,073,393 were sufficient to cover expenditures of $1,003,006 in the current year. The fund accounts for 
operating and capital costs of the Township’s fire department and policing services. 

 The fund balance of the Trails Fund at the end of the fiscal year was $15,542,750, an increase of $14,859,062. Revenues 
of $1,695,163 were less than expenditures of $2,125,050 in the current year; however, bond proceeds of $15,288,949 
were recognized that will be spent on trail improvements in the coming years. The fund’s expenditures include trail 
improvement and maintenance costs and debt service. 

 The fund balance of the Parks and Recreation Fund at the end of the fiscal year was $1,638,556, an increase of 
$666,218. Revenues of $842,375 were less than expenditures of $953,079; however, bonds proceeds of $769,320 were 
recognized that will be spent on capital improvements in the future. The fund also received a $7,602 transfer from the 
Parks Fund. The Township’s parks and recreation costs are now supported by this fund. 

 The fund balance of the Parks Fund at the end of the fiscal year was $-0-, as the fund transferred its remaining equity of 
$7,602 to the Parks and Recreation Fund, as the fund’s restricted tax millage had expired. Now all parks and recreation 
costs will be financed by the Parks and Recreation Fund. 

 The fund balance of the Parks and Open Space Fund at the end of the fiscal year was $99,140, a decrease of $389,281. 
The decrease was caused by the purchase of land for $390,287 in the current year. The fund’s restricted tax millage has 
expired, but the remaining fund balance is restricted for parks and open space costs. 

 The fund balance of the Envision Ada Fund, a capital project fund, was a deficit of $272,204 at the end of the current 
year, an increase of $120,281. The Fund recognized revenue, in the amount of $182,092, which consisted principally of 
capital contributions, that were used to fund the Envision Ada project. The fund’s resources financed the construction 
of the library and community center in prior years. The deficit is expected to be eliminated through the collection of 
pledges receivable over the next two years.  

 
Proprietary funds 
The Sewer Fund generated operating income of $638,979 and net position increased by $638,532, due to net nonoperating 
expenses of $447. The increase in net position is due to the fact that user charges were set to cover the full cost of providing 
services. Total net position is $9,530,031 at year end, of which $391,050 is restricted for capital improvements and $3,549,817 
is unrestricted. 
 
The Water Fund generated an operating income of $185,266, and net position increased by $88,165, due to net 
nonoperating expenses of $97,101. The increase in net position is due to the fact that user charges were set to cover the full 
cost of providing services. Total net position is $8,733,301 at year end, of which $1,769,938 is restricted for capital 
improvements and $2,059,378 is unrestricted. 
 
General Fund budgetary highlights 
 
The Township amended the General Fund budget to reflect changes in anticipated revenues and expenditures which 
occurred during the year. Total budgeted revenues were increased by $945,099 during the current year. Intergovernmental 
revenues were increased by $630,756, to reflect contributions from other governments, and state grant revenues were 
increased by $321,872, to reflect larger than anticipated distributions from the state. Expenditures were increased by 
$1,050,397, primarily due to an increase in capital outlay expenditures of $557,000, related to the purchase of property, 
and an increase in road maintenance and improvement costs of $395,262. 
 
Total actual revenues were $29,604 more than budgeted primarily because state grant revenue was $34,912 more than 
planned, as state distributions exceeded expectations. Total expenditures were $119,186 less than the amounts 
appropriated, primarily because capital outlay expenditures were $94,426 less than budgeted, as certain improvements 
were delayed. 
 
These conditions resulted in a positive budget variance of $148,790 due to a 45,751 increase in fund balance when the 
budget projected a $103,039 decrease. 
 
 

-11- 



Township of Ada 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital assets 
The Township’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of March 31, 2022, 
amounts to $47,412,974, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment includes a broad range of assets, including land, 
sewer and water facilities, buildings, and equipment. 
 

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Totals

Land and assets and construction in progress 5,204,807$            3,459,550$            8,664,357$       
Uti l ity systems -                           18,571,834            18,571,834       
Buildings and improvements 19,616,491            -                           19,616,491       
Equipment 326,393                  30,411                    356,804            
Vehicles 203,488                  -                           203,488            

Totals 25,351,179$          22,061,795$          47,412,974$     
 
The major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

 Ada Drive trail and boardwalk improvements were made at a cost of $1,097,412 
 Property was purchased on Bronson Street for $567,812 
 Property was purchased for Chief Hazy Cloud Park for $390,287 
 Sports field lighting costs, at Leonard Park, amounted to $231,061 
 Fase Street nonmotorized path improvements were made at a cost of $212,547 
 Water system improvements, which were in progress at year end, amounted to $3,704,977 

 
More detailed information about the Township’s capital assets is presented in Note 5 of the notes to the basic financial 
statements. 
 
Debt 
At the end of the fiscal year, the Township had long-term debt outstanding in the amount of $32,076,185, which represents 
a net increase of $14,741,390. Debt increased by $16,058,269 as bonds were issued by the governmental activities to 
finance capital improvements. Debt was reduced by $1,316,879 through timely principal payments. All debt is backed by 
the full faith and credit of the Township. 
 
Other noncurrent liabilities, totaling $139,150, represent accrued compensated absences. 
 
More detailed information about the Township’s long-term debt is presented in Note 7 of the notes to the basic financial 
statements. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 
The Township’s 2023 fiscal year budget does not anticipate significant changes in the amounts or composition of its major 
revenue sources. The Township has budgeted expenditures for the upcoming year at amounts sufficient to support its 
ongoing programs and activities. The Township anticipates continued construction costs related to water system 
improvements that are being financed with bonds that were issued during fiscal year 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-12- 



Township of Ada 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
 
CONTACTING THE TOWNSHIP’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general 
overview of the Township’s finances and to demonstrate the Township’s accountability for the resources it receives. 
Questions regarding any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to: 
 
 Julius Suchy, Township Manager Phone: (616) 676-9191 
 Township of Ada 
 7330 Thornapple River Drive 
 P.O. Box 370 
 Ada, Michigan 49301 
 
You may also send an e-mail to any of the addresses noted below: 
 
 Ross Leisman Jacqueline Smith Kevin Moran 
 Township Supervisor Township Clerk Township Treasurer 
 rleisman@adatownshipmi.com jsmith@adatownshipmi.com kmoran@adatownshipmi.com 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-13- 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
March 31, 2022

Ada Downtown Ada Brownfield
Governmental Business-type Development Redevelopment

activities activities Totals Authority Authority
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash 6,023,331$         4,643,513$         10,666,844$    978,936$                3,500$                     
Investments 16,481,939         3,420,603           19,902,542      -                            -                            
Receivables 774,770              923,906              1,698,676        1,360                       -                            
Inventory -                       5,291                   5,291                 -                            -                            

Total current assets 23,280,040         8,993,313           32,273,353      980,296                   3,500                       

Noncurrent assets:
Receivables 150,000              -                       150,000            -                            -                            
Capital assets not being depreciated 5,204,807           3,459,550           8,664,357        -                            -                            
Capital assets, net of depreciation 20,146,372         18,602,245         38,748,617      118,650                   -                            

 Total noncurrent assets 25,501,179         22,061,795         47,562,974      118,650                   -                            

Total assets 48,781,219         31,055,108         79,836,327      1,098,946               3,500                       

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Payables 655,124              682,335              1,337,459        2,050                       3,500                       
Unearned revenue 781,767              -                       781,767            -                            -                            
Bonds payable - due within one year 925,833              569,167              1,495,000        -                            -                            

Total current liabilities 2,362,724           1,251,502           3,614,226        2,050                       3,500                       

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 139,150              -                       139,150            752                           -                            
Bonds payable 19,581,706         10,999,479         30,581,185      -                            -                            

Total noncurrent liabilities 19,720,856         10,999,479         30,720,335      752                           -                            

Total liabilities 22,083,580         12,250,981         34,334,561      2,802                       3,500                       

NET POSITION  
Net investment in capital assets 20,377,747         10,493,149         30,870,896      118,650                   -                            
Restricted for:

Public safety 78,427                 -                       78,427              -                            -                            
Recreation and culture 1,327,552           -                       1,327,552        -                            -                            
Debt service 1,426,238           -                       1,426,238        -                            -                            
Capital acquisitions and improvements -                       2,160,988           2,160,988        -                            -                            

Unrestricted 3,487,675           6,149,990           9,637,665        977,494                   -                            

Total net position 26,697,639$      18,804,127$      45,501,766$    1,096,144$             -$                         

Primary government

See notes to financial statements

-14-

Component units



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year ended March 31, 2022

Operating Capital Ada Downtown Ada Brownfield
Charges for grants and grants and Governmental Business-type Development Redevelopment

Expenses services contributions contributions activities activities Totals Authority Authority

Functions/Programs
Primary government
Governmental activities:

General government 1,597,669$         183,544$            -$                     -$                     (1,414,125)$        (1,414,125)$         
Public safety 1,079,421           7,236                   12,644                 -                       (1,059,541)          (1,059,541)           
Public works 917,075              63,321                 18,629                 368,438              (466,687)             (466,687)             
Recreation and culture 1,678,496           110,774              10,697                 264,318              (1,292,707)          (1,292,707)          
Community and economic development 204,956              10,420                 -                       -                       (194,536)             (194,536)             
Interest and fees on long-term debt 556,151              -                       -                       -                       (556,151)             (556,151)             

Total governmental activities 6,033,768           375,295              41,970                 632,756              (4,983,747)          (4,983,747)          

Business-type activities:
Sewer 2,033,451           2,667,750           -                       -                       634,299$            634,299              
Water 2,705,815           2,790,577           -                       -                       84,762                 84,762                 
Inspections 314,510              313,968              -                       -                       (542)                     (542)                     

Total business-type activities 5,053,776           5,772,295           -                       -                       718,519              718,519              

Total primary government 11,087,544$       6,147,590$         41,970$              632,756$            (4,983,747)          718,519              (4,265,228)          

Component units
Downtown Development Authority 453,028$            66,923$              -$                     -$                     (386,105)$               -$                         
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 188,989              -                       -                       -                       -                           (188,989)                 

Total component units 642,017$            66,923$              -$                     -$                     (386,105)$               (188,989)$               

 General revenues:
       Property taxes 4,460,614           -                       4,460,614           427,055                   188,989                   
       State shared revenue 1,584,526           -                       1,584,526           -                           -                           

      Local community stabilization share revenue 91,885                 -                       91,885                 153,909                   -                           
      Franchise fees 261,104              -                       261,104              -                           -                           
      Unrestricted investment return (loss) (83,849)               8,738                   (75,111)               1,595                       -                           

Total general revenues 6,314,280           8,738                   6,323,018           582,559                   188,989                   

Changes in net position 1,330,533           727,257              2,057,790           196,454                   -                           

Net position - beginning 25,367,106         18,076,870         43,443,976         899,690                   -                           

Net position - ending 26,697,639$       18,804,127$       45,501,766$       1,096,144$             -$                         

Net (expenses) revenues and changes in net position

Program revenues Primary government

See notes to financial statements

-15-

Component units



Township of Ada
BALANCE SHEET - governmental funds
March 31, 2022

Project Total
Public Parks and  Parks and Envision governmental

General Safety Trails Recreation Parks Open Space ARPA Ada funds

ASSETS
Cash 2,489,069$  125,123$     1,341,986$    860,870$     -$               99,140$        779,347$     327,796$     6,023,331$        
Investments 133,638        1,121,632    14,437,112    789,557        -                 -                 -                 -                 16,481,939        
Receivables 472,598        13,528          76,937            10,857          -                 -                 -                 350,850        924,770             
Due from other funds 600,000        -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 600,000             

Total assets 3,695,305$  1,260,283$  15,856,035$  1,661,284$  -$               99,140$        779,347$     678,646$     24,030,040$     

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Payables 102,887$     60,224$        313,285$       22,728$        -$               -$               -$               -$               499,124$           
Due to other funds -                 -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 600,000        600,000             
Unearned revenue 2,420            -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 779,347        -                 781,767             

Total liabilities 105,307        60,224          313,285          22,728          -                 -                 779,347        600,000        1,880,891          

Deferred inflows of resources -
unavailable contributions -                 -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 350,850        350,850             

Fund balances (deficit):
Restricted for:

Public safety -                 78,427          -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 78,427                
Recreation and culture 359,176        -                 -                   869,236        -                 99,140          -                 -                 1,327,552          
Debt service -                 -                 1,582,238      -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 1,582,238          
Capital acquisitions -                 -                 13,960,512    769,320        -                 -                 -                 -                 14,729,832        

Assigned for capital acquisitions -                 1,121,632    -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 1,121,632          
Unassigned 3,230,822    -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 (272,204)      2,958,618          

Total fund balances (deficit) 3,589,998    1,200,059    15,542,750    1,638,556    -                 99,140          -                 (272,204)      21,798,299        

Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources
and fund balances 3,695,305$  1,260,283$  15,856,035$  1,661,284$  -$               99,140$        779,347$     678,646$     24,030,040$     

Reconciliation of the balance sheet to the statement of net position:

Total fund balance - total governmental funds 21,798,299$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities  in the statement of 
net position (page 13) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities  are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 25,351,179        

Pledges receivable are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 350,850             

Expense accruals:
Interest payable (156,000)            
Compensated absences (139,150)            

Bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (20,507,539)      

Net position of governmental activities 26,697,639$     

See notes to financial statements

-16-

Special revenue



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - governmental funds
Year ended March 31, 2022

Capital
Project Total

Public Parks and  Parks and Envision governmental
General Safety Trails Recreation Parks Open Space ARPA Ada funds

REVENUES
Property taxes 1,024,512$  1,041,194$  1,704,761$    712,262$     -$               -$               -$               -$               4,482,729$        
Licenses and permits 261,104        -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 261,104             
Federal grants -                 12,644          -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 12,644                
State grants 1,606,571    1,381            84,635            3,953            -                 -                 -                 -                 1,696,540          
Intergovernmental 630,756        -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 630,756             
Charges for services 40,370          -                 -                   48,289          -                 -                 -                 -                 88,659                
Investment return (loss) and rentals 108,761        3,638            (94,876)           63,741          -                 1,006             -                 5                     82,275                
Other 72,248          14,536          643                  14,130          -                 -                 -                 182,087        283,644             

Total revenues 3,744,322    1,073,393    1,695,163       842,375        -                 1,006             -                 182,092        7,538,351          

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 1,528,732    -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 1,528,732          
Public safety -                 975,932        -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 975,932             
Public works 915,360        -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 915,360             
Recreation and culture 121,843        -                 43,069            581,755        -                 -                 -                 -                 746,667             
Community and economic

development 201,586        -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 201,586             
Debt service:

Principal 223,542        -                 470,000          60,000          -                 -                 -                 -                 753,542             
 Interest and fees 126,484        -                 5,385               9,750            -                 -                 -                 -                 141,619             

Bond issuance costs -                 -                 293,765          10,859          -                 -                 -                 -                 304,624             
Capital outlay 581,024        27,074          1,312,831       290,715        -                 390,287        -                 61,811          2,663,742          

Total expenditures 3,698,571    1,003,006    2,125,050       953,079        -                 390,287        -                 61,811          8,231,804          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 45,751          70,387          (429,887)         (110,704)      -                 (389,281)       -                 120,281        (693,453)            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds -                 -                 14,885,680    769,320        -                 -                 -                 -                 15,655,000        
Bond premium -                 -                 403,269          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 403,269             
Transfers in -                 -                 -                   7,602            -                 -                 -                 -                 7,602                  
Transfers out -                 -                 -                   -                 (7,602)           -                 -                 -                 (7,602)                 

Net other financing
sources (uses) -                 -                 15,288,949    776,922        (7,602)           -                 -                 -                 16,058,269        

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 45,751          70,387          14,859,062    666,218        (7,602)           (389,281)       -                 120,281        15,364,816        

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING 3,544,247    1,129,672    683,688          972,338        7,602            488,421        -                 (392,485)      6,433,483          

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - ENDING 3,589,998$  1,200,059$  15,542,750$  1,638,556$  -$               99,140$        -$               (272,204)$    21,798,299$     
 

Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances to the statement of activities:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds 15,364,816$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 14) are different because:

Capital assets:
Assets acquired 2,568,479          
Assets disposed, net (7,300)                 
Provision for depreciation (1,009,257)         

Long-term debt:
Bond proceeds (15,655,000)      
Bond premium (403,269)            
Principal payments 753,542             
Amortization of bond premium 30,592                

Changes in other assets/liabilities:
Net increase in compensated absences (4,820)                 
Net increase in interest payable (140,500)            

Change in deferred inflows of resources - decrease in unavailable capital contributions (166,750)            

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,330,533$        

-17-

See notes to financial statements

Special revenue



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - proprietary funds
March 31, 2022

Nonmajor
Sewer Water fund Totals

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash 2,493,022$    1,616,212$    534,279$        4,643,513$    
Investments 1,068,953      2,351,650      -                  3,420,603      
Receivables 546,898          340,530          36,478            923,906          
Inventory -                  5,291              -                  5,291              

Total current assets 4,108,873      4,313,683      570,757          8,993,313      

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated -                  3,459,550      -                  3,459,550      
Capital assets, net of depreciation 9,323,232      9,279,013      -                  18,602,245    

Total noncurrent assets 9,323,232      12,738,563    -                  22,061,795    

Total assets 13,432,105    17,052,246    570,757          31,055,108    

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Payables 168,006          484,367          29,962            682,335          
Bonds payable - due within one year 238,200          330,967          -                  569,167          

Total current liabilities 406,206          815,334          29,962            1,251,502      

Noncurrent liabilities - bonds payable 3,495,868      7,503,611      -                  10,999,479    

Total liabilities 3,902,074      8,318,945      29,962            12,250,981    

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,589,164      4,903,985      -                  10,493,149    
Restricted for capital improvements 391,050          1,769,938      -                  2,160,988      
Unrestricted 3,549,817      2,059,378      540,795          6,149,990      

Total net position 9,530,031$    8,733,301$    540,795$        18,804,127$  

See notes to financial statements

-18-



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - proprietary funds
Year ended March 31, 2022

Nonmajor
Sewer Water fund Totals

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:

Utility charges 2,617,745$    2,700,412$    -$                5,318,157$    
Inspection fees -                  -                  313,968          313,968          

Total operating revenues 2,617,745      2,700,412      313,968          5,632,125      

OPERATING EXPENSES     
Personnel costs 56,577            78,933            56,705            192,215          
Supplies 13,551            33,657            -                  47,208            
Contracted services:  

Sewage treatment 1,437,415      -                  -                  1,437,415      
Water purchases -                  1,428,648      -                  1,428,648      
Inspections -                  -                  252,391          252,391          
Other 92,159            242,347          -                  334,506          

Utilities 60,497            31,288            -                  91,785            
Repairs and maintenance 84,199            117,448          5,414              207,061          
Depreciation 225,583          567,909          -                  793,492          
Miscellaneous 8,785              14,916            -                  23,701            

Total operating expenses 1,978,766      2,515,146      314,510          4,808,422      
  

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 638,979          185,266          (542)                823,703          
   

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Connection fee revenue 27,100            50,105            -                  77,205            
Connection fees remitted to the City of Grand Rapids (19,560)           (32,685)           -                  (52,245)           
Tap and other fees 22,905            40,060            -                  62,965            
Interest revenue 4,233              3,403              1,102              8,738              
Interest expense (35,125)           (157,984)        -                  (193,109)        

 
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) (447)                (97,101)           1,102              (96,446)           

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 638,532          88,165            560                  727,257          
 

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 8,891,499      8,645,136      540,235          18,076,870    

NET POSITION - ENDING 9,530,031$    8,733,301$    540,795$        18,804,127$  
  
  

See notes to financial statements

-19-



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - proprietary funds
Year ended March 31, 2022

Nonmajor
Sewer Water fund Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users 2,536,705$     2,664,042$     295,767$        5,496,514$     
Payments to vendors and suppliers (1,683,880)     (1,830,163)     (257,680)         (3,771,723)     
Payments to employees (40,883)           (51,114)           (42,500)           (134,497)         

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 811,942          782,765          (4,413)             1,590,294       

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Connection fees 27,100            50,105            -                   77,205            
Connection fees paid to City of Grand Rapids (19,560)           (32,685)           -                   (52,245)           
Tap and other fees 22,905            40,060            -                   62,965            
Acquisition of capital assets (12,481)           (3,417,400)     -                   (3,429,881)     
Decrease in payables (134,013)         (35,042)           -                   (169,055)         
Principal payments on capital debt (204,080)         (317,379)         -                   (521,459)         
Interest payments on capital debt (59,389)           (167,306)         -                   (226,695)         

Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities (379,518)         (3,879,647)     -                   (4,259,165)     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Purchases) sales of investments (248)                3,998,452       -                   3,998,204       
Interest received 4,233              3,403              1,102              8,738              

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 3,985              4,001,855       1,102              4,006,942       

NET CHANGE IN CASH 436,409          904,973          (3,311)             1,338,071       

CASH - BEGINNING 2,056,613       711,239          537,590          3,305,442       

CASH - ENDING 2,493,022$     1,616,212$     534,279$        4,643,513$     
  

See notes to financial statements

-20-



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - proprietary funds (Continued)
Year ended March 31, 2022

Nonmajor
Sewer Water fund Totals

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 638,979$        185,266$        (542)$              823,703$        
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:

Depreciation 225,583          567,909          -                   793,492          
(Increase) decrease in receivables (81,040)           (36,370)           (18,201)           (135,611)         
Increase (decrease) in payables 28,420            65,960            14,330            108,710          

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 811,942$        782,765$        (4,413)$           1,590,294$     

Noncash capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (12,481)           (3,704,977)     -                   (3,717,458)     
Less increase in payables -                   287,577          -                   287,577          

 
Cash used (12,481)$         (3,417,400)$   -$                (3,429,881)$   

See notes to financial statements

-21-



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - Custodial Fund
March 31, 2022

Tax
Collection

ASSETS
Cash 14,939$          

LIABILITIES
Due to other governments 14,939            

NET POSITION  
Restricted for other governments -$                

See notes to financial statements

-22-



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSTION - Custodial Fund
Year ended March 31, 2022

Tax
Collection

ADDITIONS
Property taxes collected for other governments 35,983,695$  

DEDUCTIONS
Property taxes distributed to other governments 35,983,695    

NET CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -                  

NET POSITION - BEGINNING -                  

NET POSTION - ENDING -$                

See notes to financial statements

-23-



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of the Township of Ada, Michigan (the Township), conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting principles) as applicable 
to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies. 
 
Reporting entity: 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the Township (the primary 
government), located in Kent County, and its component units described below, for which the Township is financially 
accountable. The Township exercises oversight responsibility over each component unit, as their governing bodies are 
appointed by the Township Supervisor, and their budgets must be approved by the Township Board. The Township is also 
obligated to provide some of its tax revenues to each component unit, through tax increment financing, which represents a 
financial burden on the Township. The discretely presented component units are reported in separate columns in the 
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government. Separate 
financial statements for the component units have not been issued, as management believes that these financial statements, 
including disclosures, contain complete information so as to constitute a fair presentation of the component units. 
 

Discretely presented component units:  
Ada Downtown Development Authority - The Authority was established pursuant to Public Act 197 of 1975, as 
amended, to correct and prevent deterioration and promote economic growth within the downtown district.  

 
Ada Brownfield Redevelopment Authority - The Authority was established pursuant to Public Act 381 of 1996, as 
amended, to promote the revitalization of environmentally distressed areas within the Township.   

 
Government-wide and fund financial statements: 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report 
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Township. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from 
these statements. Governmental activities, normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include: 
(1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by 
a given function; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of 
a particular function. Property taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead 
as general revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and the fiduciary fund, even though 
the latter is excluded from government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major 
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation: 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-24- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued): 
Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered to be available if they are collected within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay 
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Township generally considers revenues to be available if they are 
expected to be collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, expenditures relating to compensated 
absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
State grants, licenses and permits, charges for services, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue 
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Township. 
 
The Township reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the Township’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the Township, 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are primarily derived from state shared 
revenue and property taxes. 

 
The Public Safety Fund, a special revenue fund, accounts for all financial resources used by the Township to 
provide police and fire protection services. Revenues are primarily derived from property taxes. 

 
The Trails Fund, a special revenue fund, accounts for financial resources used by the Township to construct and 
improve the nonmotorized pathway system. Revenues are primarily derived from property taxes. 

 
The Parks and Recreation Fund, a special revenue fund, accounts for financial resources used by the Township for 
parks and recreation purposes, including the acquisition and maintenance of park property. Revenues are primarily 
derived from property taxes. 
 
The Parks Fund, a special revenue fund, accounts for financial resources used by the Township to maintain and 
improve recreational facilities. Revenues are primarily derived from property taxes from an expired millage. 
 
The Parks and Open Space Fund, a special revenue fund, accounts for financial resources used by the Township for 
parks and recreation purposes, and to preserve land. Revenues are primarily derived from property taxes from an 
expired millage. 
 
The ARPA Fund, a special revenue fund, is used to account for restricted resources provided by the American Rescue 
Plan Act. Revenues are derived from a federal grant. 
 
The Envision Ada Fund, a capital project fund, accounts for the financial resources used by the Township to make 
infrastructure improvements related to the “Envision Ada” project. Resources are derived from bond proceeds and 
contributions. 

 
The Township reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 

The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the Township’s sewage collection system. 
 

The Water Fund accounts for the activities of the Township’s water distribution system. 
 
 
 

-25- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued): 
The Township also reports a custodial fund, the Tax Collection Fund, which accounts for assets held by the Township in a 
fiduciary capacity for other governments.  
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges 
provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources 
are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all property taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal 
operating revenues of the proprietary funds relate to charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for proprietary 
funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Assets, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and equity: 

Cash and investments - Cash consists of cash on hand, demand deposits, and highly-liquid, short-term investments 
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are reported at fair value 
with changes in value recognized in the operating statement of each fund. Realized and unrealized gains and losses 
are included in investment income. Pooled interest income is allocated proportionately to all funds and component 
units. 

 
Receivables - Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year is referred to as “due to/from other funds.” No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been 
recorded, as the Township considers all receivables to be fully collectible. 
 
Prepaids - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in the fund statements and the government-wide financial statements. 

 
Inventory - Inventories, reported in the proprietary funds, are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is 
determined under the first-in, first-out method. 

 
Capital assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., sewer and water 
systems), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Township as assets with an initial, individual cost of more 
than $3,000 ($10,000 for infrastructure assets) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are 
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are 
recorded at acquisition value as of the date received. The Township elected to account for infrastructure assets of 
governmental activities either retroactively to June 15, 1980, or prospectively. The Township has elected to 
account for infrastructure assets prospectively, beginning April 1, 2004. 

 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 

 
Buildings and improvements 50 years
Equipment 5 - 20 years
Vehicles 5 - 10 years
Infrastructure - util ity systems 67 years  

 
Unearned revenue - Unearned revenue represents resources related to a federal grant, which have been received, but 
not yet been earned. 

 
 

-26- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and equity (continued): 

Compensated absences - It is the Township’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick and 
vacation pay benefits. Vested compensated absences are accrued when earned in the government-wide and 
proprietary funds financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only for 
employee terminations as of year end. 
 
Deferred inflows of resources - The governmental funds balance sheet includes a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element reflects an increase in net position that applies to a 
future period. The related revenues will not be recognized until a future event occurs. Pledges receivable are 
included in this category. The pledges, which are recognized as they become available (collected within 60 days 
after the end of the Township's fiscal year), are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period 
that the revenues become available. 
 
Net position - Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. The Township reports three 
categories of net position, as follows: (1) Net investment in capital assets consists of net capital assets reduced by 
outstanding balances of any related debt obligations attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement 
of those assets; (2) Restricted net position is considered restricted if its use is constrained to a particular purpose. 
Restrictions are imposed by external organizations, such as federal or state laws or buyers of the Township’s debt. 
Restricted net position is reduced by liabilities related to the restricted assets; (3) Unrestricted net position consists 
of all other net position that does not meet the definition of the above components and is available for general use 
by the Township. 
 
Net position flow assumption - Sometimes, the Township will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both 
restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to 
report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide and proprietary funds 
financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to 
be applied. It is the Township’s policy to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before 
unrestricted - net position is applied. 

 
Fund equity - Governmental funds report nonspendable fund balance for amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are not in spendable form. Restricted fund balance is reported when externally imposed constraints are 
placed on the use of resources by grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments. The 
Township Board retains the authority to assign fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification 
for the General Fund. When the Township incurs an expenditure for purposes for which various fund balance 
classifications can be used, it is the Township’s policy to use restricted fund balance first, followed by assigned 
fund balance, and, finally, unassigned fund balance. 

 
Property tax revenue recognition - Property taxes are levied each December 1 (lien date) on the taxable valuation 
of property as of the preceding December 31. Property taxes are considered delinquent on March 1 of the 
following year, at which time interest and penalties are assessed. It is the Township’s policy to recognize revenue 
from the tax levy in the current year, when the proceeds are budgeted and made available for the financing of 
operations. 

 
Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

 
 
 

-27- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
Budgetary information - Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for 
the general and special revenue funds. The budget document presents information by fund, function, department, and line-
item. The legal level of budgetary control adopted by the governing body is the activity level. All annual appropriations 
lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
Excess of expenditures over appropriations - The following schedule sets forth the reportable budget variances: 

 
Final

Entity Fund Function Activity budget Actual Variance

Primary government General General government Manager 137,380$   140,945$   3,565$        
 Clerk 191,492      198,884      7,392          
 Building and grounds 157,668      187,385      29,717        
 General administration 454,015      501,077      47,062        

Public safety Public safety Police protection 334,000      348,472      14,472        
Trails Debt service Issuance costs 30,000        293,765      263,765      

Capital outlay Capital outlay 1,280,500  1,312,831  32,331        
Parks and Recreation Debt service Issuance costs -               10,859        10,859        

Component unit - Brownfield     
  Redevelopment Authority Operating Public works 181,039      188,989      7,950           

 
Fund balance deficit - The Envision Ada Fund, a capital project fund, has a fund balance deficit of $272,204. The deficit 
occurred because project costs exceeded available resources. The deficit is expected to be eliminated as pledges receivable, 
in the amount of $350,850 at year end, are collected. 
 
NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
At March 31, 2022, cash and investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

 
Governmental Business-type Primary Custodial Component

activities activities government activities units Totals

Per financial statements:
Cash 6,023,331$          4,643,513$        10,666,844$     14,939$   982,436$         11,664,219$  
Investments 16,481,939          3,420,603          19,902,542        -            -                    19,902,542     

Totals 22,505,270$        8,064,116$        30,569,386$     14,939$   982,436$         31,566,761$  

Composition:
Cash on hand 200$                     -$                    200$                   -$          -$                  200$                
Deposits 6,023,131            4,643,513          10,666,644        14,939     982,436           11,664,019     
Investments 16,481,939          3,420,603          19,902,542        -            -                    19,902,542     

Totals 22,505,270$        8,064,116$        30,569,386$     14,939$   982,436$         31,566,761$   
 
Deposits - Michigan Compiled Laws, Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) and the Township’s investment policy 
authorize the Township to make deposits in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions, and savings and loan 
associations that have an office in Michigan. The Township’s deposits are in accordance with statutory authority. 
 
 
 
 

-28- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)  
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the Township will not be able to recover 
its deposits. The Township’s investment policy does not specifically address custodial credit risk for deposits. At March 31, 
2022, $10,776,536 of the Township’s bank balances of $11,276,536 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was 
uninsured and uncollateralized. The Township maintains individual and pooled bank accounts for all of its funds and its 
component units. Due to the use of pooled deposits, it is not practicable to allocate insured and uninsured portions of 
certain bank balances between the primary government and the component units. 
 
Investments - State statutes and the Township’s investment policy authorize the Township to invest in a) obligations of the 
U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities; b) commercial paper rated within the two highest rate classifications, which 
mature not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; c) repurchase agreements, collateralized by U.S. governmental 
securities; d) bankers' acceptances; e) mutual funds composed of otherwise legal investments; and f) investment pools 
organized under the local government investment pool act. The Township’s investment policy does not address credit risk 
or interest rate risk for investments.  
 
The Township’s investments are summarized as follows: 
 

Fair
value Maturity Rating

U.S. government securities - 
FNMA collateralized mortgage obligations 858,217$           2050 N/A

Michigan CLASS Pool 17,666,413       N/A N/A

Kent County Pool 1,377,912          N/A N/A

  Total investments 19,902,542$     

Investment

 
 
Fair value measurement - The Township categorizes its fair value measurements of investments within the fair value 
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs 
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The Township has the following 
recurring fair value measurement as of March 31, 2022: 
 

 U.S. government securities and agency are valued using observable fair values of similar assets (Level 2). 
 
Investments in entities that calculate net asset value per share - The Township holds shares in investment pools where the 
fair value of the investment is measured on a recurring basis using net asset value per share of the investment pool as a 
practical expedient. At March 31, 2022, the fair value, unfunded commitments, and redemption rules of these investments 
are as follows: 

 
Michigan Kent

CLASS Pool County Pool

Fair value at March 31, 2022 17,666,413$ 1,377,912$   
Unfunded commitments none none
Redemption frequency n/a n/a
Notice period none none  

 
-29- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

 
NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)  
 
The Michigan CLASS investment Pool invests in U.S. Treasury obligations, federal agency obligations of the U.S. government, 
high-grade commercial paper (rated 'A-1' or better), collateralized bank deposits, repurchase agreements (collateralized at 
102% by treasury agencies), and approved money market funds. The program is designed to meet the needs of Michigan 
public sector investors. The Pool purchases securities that are legally permissible under state statutes and are available for 
investment by Michigan counties, cities, townships, school districts, authorities, and other public agencies. 
 
The Kent County Investment Pool is a local government investment pool established under Michigan state statutes for 
participating Michigan municipalities. This Pool, which is a nonrisk categorized qualifying investment, is carried at fair value. 
The fair value of the Township’s position in the Pool is the same as the value of its pool shares. The Pool operates like a 
money market fund, with each share valued at $1, and is not rated (credit risk); it is not subject to regulatory oversight and 
is not registered with the SEC; the Pool issues a separate report, which is available at 300 Monroe Avenue, N.W., Grand 
Rapids, Michigan 49503-2221. 
 
The Township’s investments are subject to certain types of risk, which are discussed below: 
 
Custodial credit risk - Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, the Township will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State law does not require, and the Township’s investment policy 
does not contain, requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. At year end, the 
U.S. government investments were uninsured and unregistered and held by the same broker-dealer (counterparty) that 
purchased the securities for the Township. 
 
Interest rate risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of an investment will decrease as a result of an increase in 
market interest rates. Generally, longer investment maturities generate more sensitivity to changes in an investment’s fair 
value due to changes in market interest rates. The Township’s investment policy has no specific limitations with respect to 
maturities of investments. The maturities of the Township’s investments are identified above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-30- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES 
 
Receivables as of March 31, 2022, for the Township’s funds and its component units, all of which are considered fully 
collectible, were as follows: 

  
 Property Intergovern-

taxes Accounts mental Pledges Totals

Governmental:
General 13,424$          65,382$          393,792$          -$                   472,598$       
Public Safety 13,528            -                   -                     -                     13,528            
Trails 21,636            -                   55,301               -                     76,937            
Parks and Recreation 9,254              1,603              -                     -                     10,857            

Envision Ada -                   -                   -                     350,850            350,850          

Total governmental 57,842$          66,985$          449,093$          350,850$          924,770$       

Noncurrent -$                -$                -$                   150,000$          150,000$       

Proprietary:
Sewer -$                546,898$       -$                   -$                   546,898$       
Water -                   340,530          -                     -                     340,530          
Nonmajor -                   -                   36,478               -                     36,478            

Total proprietary -$                887,428$       36,478$            -$                   923,906$       

Component units:
Ada Downtown Development Authority 1,360$            -$                -$                   -$                   1,360$            

Fund

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-31- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2022, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 2,936,749$      958,099$          -$                      3,894,848$      

Construction in progress -                         1,309,959         -                         1,309,959         

Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,936,749         2,268,058         -                         5,204,807         

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 26,674,560      279,002             -                         26,953,562      
Equipment 1,721,793         21,419                (124,850)            1,618,362         

Vehicles 1,348,160         -                         (2,000)                  1,346,160         

Subtotal 29,744,513      300,421             (126,850)            29,918,084      

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (6,439,768)       (897,303)            -                         (7,337,071)       
Equipment (1,338,231)       (71,288)               117,550             (1,291,969)       

Vehicles (1,104,006)       (40,666)               2,000                   (1,142,672)       

Subtotal (8,882,005)       (1,009,257)       119,550             (9,771,712)       

Total capital assets being depreciated 20,862,508      (708,836)            (7,300)                  20,146,372      

Governmental activities capital assets, net 23,799,257$   1,559,222$      (7,300)$               25,351,179$   

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated -

construction in progress 1,990,605$      3,693,750$      (2,224,805)$    3,459,550$      

Capital assets being depreciated:
Facilities 25,827,671      2,216,695         -                         28,044,366      
Buildings 41,090                -                         -                         41,090                

Equipment 126,536             11,227                -                         137,763             

Subtotal 25,995,297      2,227,922         -                         28,223,219      

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities (8,682,265)       (790,267)            -                         (9,472,532)       
Buildings (41,090)               -                         -                         (41,090)               

Equipment (104,127)            (3,225)                  -                         (107,352)            

Subtotal (8,827,482)       (793,492)            -                         (9,620,974)       

Total capital assets being depreciated 17,167,815      1,434,430         -                         18,602,245      

Business-type activities capital assets, net 19,158,420$   5,128,180$      (2,224,805)$    22,061,795$    
-32- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance

Component unit - Downtown Development Authority:
Capital assets being depreciated:

Improvements 161,794$    -$             -$             161,794$    

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements (32,358)       (10,786)       -               (43,144)       

Component unit capital assets, net 129,436$    (10,786)$     -$             118,650$     
 
Depreciation expense was charged to the Township’s governmental activity functions as follows: 
 

Governmental activities:
General government 52,420$       
Public safety 92,211         
Public works 1,585            
Recreation and culture 863,041       

Total governmental activities 1,009,257$  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-33- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 6 - PAYABLES 
 
Payables as of March 31, 2022, for the Township’s funds and its component unit, were as follows: 
 

Accounts Payroll Interest Totals

Primary government:
Governmental:

General 70,110$        32,777$      -$             102,887$     
Public Safety 55,964          4,260           -               60,224          
Trails 312,175        1,110           -               313,285        
Parks and Recreation 20,338          2,390           -               22,728          

Total governmental 458,587$     40,537$      -$             499,124$     

Proprietary:
Sewer 158,006$     400$            9,600$         168,006$     
Water 470,417        550              13,400         484,367        
Nonmajor 29,182          780              -               29,962          

Total proprietary 657,605$     1,730$         23,000$      682,335$     

Component units:
Downtown Development Authority 910$             1,140$         -$             2,050$          

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 3,500            -               -               3,500            

Total component units 4,410$          1,140$         -$             5,550$          

Fund

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

-34- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Long-term liabilities, as of March 31, 2022, are comprised of the following individual items: 
 

Governmental activities:
Bonds: $1,045,000 2016 Capital improvement bonds - payable in annual

installments ranging from $70,550 to $134,560, plus interest at
2.0% to 3.0%; final payment due March 2036 797,500$       

$4,720,000 2017 Capital improvement bonds - payable in annual
installments ranging from $220,000 to $255,000, plus interest at
2.0 % to 3.0%; final payment due March 2032 3,580,000      

$15,655,000 2021 Capital improvement bonds - payable in annual
installments ranging from $630,000 to $940,000, plus interest at
2.0000 % to 2.125%; final payment due May 2041 15,655,000    

Premium - 2016 Capital improvement bonds 6,775              

Premium - 2017 Capital improvement bonds 83,473            

Premium - 2021 Capital improvement bonds 384,791          

Total bonds 20,507,539    

Accrued compensated absences 139,150          

Total governmental activities long-term liabilities 20,646,689$  

Business-type activities:
Bonds: $1,235,000 2016 Capital improvement bonds - payable in annual

installments ranging from $70,550 to $134,560, plus interest at
2.0% to 3.0%; final payment due March 2036 942,500$       

$9,675,000, 2020  Capital improvement bonds - payable in annual
installments ranging from $360,000 to $645,000, plus interest at
2.0%; final payment due March 2040 8,955,000      

$1,765,000 2021 General obligation limited tax refunding bonds - 
payable in annual installments ranging from $140,000 to $155,000, 
plus interest at .50% to 1.20%; final payment due May 2031 1,470,000      

Premium - 2020 Capital improvement bonds 192,231          

Premium - 2016 Capital improvement bonds 8,915              

Total business-type activities long-term liabil ities 11,568,646$  

Component unit - Downtown Development Authority:
Accrued compensated absences 752$                

 
 
 
 
 

 
-35- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended March 31, 2022, is as follows: 
 

    

Amounts
Beginning Ending due within

balance Additions Reductions balance one year

Governmental activities:
Bonds:

2016 Capital improvement bonds 841,042$       -$                (43,542)$       797,500$       45,833$      
2017 Refunding bonds 470,000         -                  (470,000)       -                  -               
2017 CIP Bonds, Series 2 3,820,000      -                  (240,000)       3,580,000      250,000      
2021 Capital improvement bonds -                  15,655,000    -                 15,655,000    630,000      

Total bonds 5,131,042      15,655,000    (753,542)       20,032,500    925,833      

Premium - 2016 bonds 7,287              -                  (512)               6,775              -               
Premium - 2017 CIP Bonds 95,075            (11,602)         83,473            -               
Premium - 2021 CIP Bonds -                  403,269         (18,478)         384,791         -               

Totals 5,233,404      16,058,269    (784,134)       20,507,539    925,833      

Compensated absences 134,330         134,460         (129,640)       139,150         -               

Total governmental
activities 5,367,734$    16,192,729$ (913,774)$     20,646,689$ 925,833$   

Business-type activities:
Bonds:

2011 CIP Bonds Series B 110,000$       -$                (110,000)$     -$                -$            
2016 Capital improvement bonds 993,959         -                  (51,459)         942,500         54,167        
2020 CIP Bonds 9,315,000      -                  (360,000)       8,955,000      375,000      
2021 Refunding Bonds 1,470,000      -                  -                 1,470,000      140,000      

Total bonds 11,888,959    -                  (521,459)       11,367,500    569,167      

Premium - 2016 bonds 9,522              -                  (607)               8,915              -               
Premium - 2020 CIP Bonds 202,910         -                  (10,679)         192,231         -               

Total business-type
activities 12,101,391$ -$                (532,745)$     11,568,646$ 569,167$   

 
Component Unit:

Compensated absences -$                752$               -$               752$                
 
 
 
 
 

-36- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 
 
At March 31, 2022, debt service requirements, excluding compensated absences, were as follows: 
 

Year ended
March 31: Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023 925,833$       453,540$       569,167$       221,082$       
2024 963,125          415,626          586,875          211,749          
2025 983,125          393,614          601,875          202,042          
2026 1,015,417      371,151          614,583          191,889          
2027 967,708          347,893          632,292          181,302          

2028 - 2032 5,178,750      1,402,916      3,431,250      727,529          
2033 - 2037 5,473,542      777,463          3,056,458      402,834          
2038 - 2042 4,525,000      239,184          1,875,000      85,014            

20,032,500$  4,401,387$    11,367,500$  2,223,441$    

Governmental activities Business-type activities

 
 
All debt is secured by the full faith and credit of the Township. None of the individual items are considered direct 
borrowings or direct placement of debt. 
 
NOTE 8 - PROPERTY TAXES 
 
The 2021 taxable valuation of the Township approximated $1,124,731,000, on which ad valorem taxes levied consisted of 
0.8935 mills for operating purposes, 0.9379 mills for public safety, 1.5000 mills for trails, and 0.6416 mills for parks, 
recreation, and land preservation, raising approximately $1,005,000 for operating purposes, $1,055,000 for public safety, 
$1,687,000 for trails, and $722,000 for parks, recreation, and land preservation. These amounts are recognized in the fund 
financial statements as property tax revenue. 
 
The 2021 taxable valuation of the Downtown Development Authority, a component unit, approximated $171,671,000, on 
which ad valorem taxes levied consisted of 1.9724 mills for operating purposes raising approximately $339,000 for 
operating purposes. This amount is recognized in the component unit financial statements as property tax revenue. 
 
NOTE 9 - TAX ABATEMENTS 
 
The Township enters into property tax abatement agreements with local businesses for the purpose of attracting or 
retaining businesses within the Township. Each agreement was negotiated under a state law, which allows local units to 
abate property taxes for a variety of economic development purposes. The abatements may be granted to local businesses 
located within the Township or promising to relocate within the Township. Depending on the statute referenced for a 
particular abatement, the Township may grant abatements of up to 50% of annual property taxes through a direct 
reduction of the entity's property tax bill, not to exceed twelve years. Depending on the terms of the agreement and state 
law, abated taxes may be subject to recapture upon default of the entity. The Township has not made any commitments as 
part of the agreements other than to reduce taxes. The Township is not subject to any tax abatement agreements entered 
into by other governmental entities. 
 
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022, the Township abated property taxes totaling $46,787 under Public Act 198 of 
1974, related to industrial facilities, which represents a 50% abatement of the millage rate on certain real and personal 
properties. 
 
 
 
 

-37- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 10 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 
 
At March 31, 2022, the Envision Ada Fund, a capital project fund, owes the General Fund $600,000 related to a loan used to 
pay project construction costs. The loan will be repaid from the proceeds of pledged funds once received by the Township. 
It is anticipated that the pledged funds will be received by July, 2023. Interest on the unpaid balance of the loan shall accrue 
and be paid at the rate of 0.75% per annum.  
 
During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Parks Fund was closed by transferring its remaining equity of $7,602 to the 
Parks and Recreation Fund. 
 
NOTE 11 - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN 
 
The Township and its employees contribute to the Ada Township Group Pension Plan, a defined contribution pension plan, 
which is administered by a third-party administrator. The plan covers two classes of employees, as allowed under Internal 
Revenue Code Section 401(a). The first class of employees includes elected officials, the fire chief, and all full-time 
employees (30 hours per week). The second class of employees includes paid on-call firefighters. 
 
Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the Plan are established, and may be amended, by the Township 
Board. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, plus investment earnings. 
Employees are eligible to participate as described above. The Township contributes 10% of covered payroll to the first class 
of qualifying employees. The Township contributes an amount equal to 5% of covered payroll to the second class of qualifying 
employees, with a required contribution of 6.2% of compensation by all covered employees in the second class. Covered 
employees may voluntarily contribute up to 10% of their compensation to the Plan. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the 
Township and eligible employees made contributions of $147,333 and $25,681, respectively. At March 31, 2022, the Township 
reported no accrued liability as part of the contributions to the plan. 
 
The Township’s contributions for each employee (and investment earnings allocated to the employee’s account) are fully 
vested on the day the employee is eligible to participate in the plan, which occurs after three months of service for the first 
class of employees and immediately for the second class of employees. 
 
The Township is not a trustee of the defined contribution pension plan, nor is the Township responsible for investment 
management of the pension plan assets. Accordingly, plan assets, and changes therein, are not reported in these financial 
statements. 
 
NOTE 12 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
The Township offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code, 
Section 457. The assets of the plans were held in trust (custodial account or annuity contract), as described in 
IRC Section 457(g) for the exclusive benefit of the participants (employees) and their beneficiaries. The custodian thereof for 
the exclusive benefit of the participants holds the custodial account for the beneficiaries of this Section 457 plan, and the 
assets may not be diverted to any other use. The administrators are agents of the employer for purposes of providing direction 
to the custodian of the custodial account from time to time for the investment of the funds held in the account, transfer of 
assets to or from the account, and all other matters. In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 32, plan 
balances and activities are not reflected in the Township’s financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-38- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; employee health and medical claims; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The risks of loss arising from 
general liability, building contents, employees’ health insurance, workers’ compensation, and casualty are managed through 
purchased commercial insurance. For all risks of loss, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from 
coverage provided in prior years. Also, in the past three years, settlements did not exceed insurance coverage. 
 
NOTE 14 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 
 
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022, the Township received approximately 13% of its property tax revenue and 
28% percent of its sewer and water utility revenue from one industrial property owner. 
 
NOTE 15 - OPERATING LEASE 
 
In 2018, the Township began leasing a parking lot from a property owner under a fifteen-year operating lease. The agreement 
provides for two automatic 10-year extensions unless terminated by either party. Written notice to terminate must be 
provided 120 days before the expiration of the initial lease term. The total costs associated with this lease were $25,758 during 
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022. The future minimum lease payments for this lease are as follows: 
 

Year ended
March 31, Amount

2023 26,015$       
2024 26,275         
2025 26,538         
2026 26,803         
2027 27,071         

132,702$      
 
NOTE 16 - CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 
 
At March 31, 2022, the Township had the following contractual construction commitments: 
 

Project Expended through
authorization March 31, 2022 Committed

Adatowne and Adacroft Watermain Improvements 5,764,569$            3,851,612$            1,912,957$            
Fase Street nonmotorized path 271,291                  212,547                  58,744                    
Ade Drive Trail  and boardwalk replacement 835,370                  723,049                  112,321                  

Total 6,871,230$            4,787,208$            2,084,022$             
 
The watermain improvements are being funded through the issuance of capital improvement bonds in fiscal year 2021 and 
trail and nonmotorized path improvements are being funded through a bond issued in fiscal year 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 

-39- 



Township of Ada 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
 
NOTE 17 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT of 2021 
 
On March 11, 2021, the United States executed the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA), which included $362 billion in 
funds to be awarded as economic assistance to state and local governments to prepare for and respond to COVID-19. Under 
the American Rescue Plan Act, the Township was awarded $1,552,444 in federal Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
(ARPA Funds). The Township received half of the ARPA Funds in September 2021, with the second half anticipated in 2022. The 
amount received in 2021 ($779,347) is presented as unearned revenue in the ARPA Fund at March 31, 2022, as no 
expenditures were incurred during fiscal year 2022. The Township is subject to rules issued by the U.S. Treasury Department 
regarding the use of ARPA Funds and has identified the following allowable uses: support public health expenditures, address 
negative economic impacts caused by the COVID-19 public health emergency, replace lost public sector revenue, provide 
premium pay for essential workers, and invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure. The Township expects to spend 
the awarded funds under the applicable federal guidelines. 
 
NOTE 18 - PENDING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases, was issued by the GASB in June 2017 and will 
be effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The objective of this Statement is to increase the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously 
were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases 
are financings of the right to use the underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease 
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred 
inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. 
 
In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements.  This Statement 
provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements 
(SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a 
right-to-use subscription asset - an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization 
criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note 
disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established in 
Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The Township is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial 
statements when adopted during the 2023 fiscal year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-40- 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



Township of Ada
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -  General Fund
Year ended March 31, 2022

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

REVENUES
Property taxes 1,025,520$     1,017,991$     1,024,512$     6,521$                   
Licenses and permits 268,500          268,500          261,104          (7,396)                    
State grants 1,249,787       1,571,659       1,606,571       34,912                   
Intergovernmental -                   630,756          630,756          -                         
Charges for services 36,000            36,000            40,370            4,370                     
Interest and rentals 109,936          109,936          108,761          (1,175)                    
Other:  

Special assessments 64,876            64,876            63,321            (1,555)                    
Miscellaneous 15,000            15,000            8,927              (6,073)                    

Total revenues 2,769,619       3,714,718       3,744,322       29,604                   
 

EXPENDITURES
General government:

Legislative 36,542            36,542            33,459            3,083                     
Supervisor 56,093            56,093            56,593            (500)                       
Manager 137,380          137,380          140,945          (3,565)                    
Elections 25,450            25,450            1,820              23,630                   
Assessor 228,654          228,654          214,856          13,798                   
Clerk 191,492          191,492          198,884          (7,392)                    
Board of review 2,017              2,017              1,716              301                        
Treasurer 192,663          192,663          191,997          666                        
Building and grounds 157,668          157,668          187,385          (29,717)                 
General administration 454,015          454,015          501,077          (47,062)                 

Total general government 1,481,974       1,481,974       1,528,732       (46,758)                 
  

Public works:  
Road maintenance and improvements 417,300          812,562          802,908          9,654                     
Street lighting 66,500            66,500            66,089            411                        
Cemeteries 49,483            49,483            46,363            3,120                     

Total public works 533,283          928,545          915,360          13,185                   

Recreation and culture - library 139,050          139,050          121,843          17,207                   

-41-



Township of Ada
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -  General Fund (Continued)
Year ended March 31, 2022

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Community and economic development 242,916$        242,916$        201,586$        41,330$                 

Debt service:
Principal 222,183          223,762          223,542          220                        

Interest 29,504            126,060          126,484          (424)                       
 

Capital outlay 118,450          675,450          581,024          94,426                   

Total expenditures 2,767,360       3,817,757       3,698,571       119,186                 
 

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 2,259              (103,039)         45,751            148,790                 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 3,544,247       3,544,247       3,544,247       -                         

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 3,546,506$     3,441,208$     3,589,998$     148,790$              
 

   
   

  
 
 

-42-



Township of Ada
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -  Public Safety Fund
Year ended March 31, 2022

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

REVENUES
Property taxes 1,043,000$     1,043,000$     1,041,194$     (1,806)$                 
Federal grant -                   -                   12,644            12,644                   
State grant 1,577              1,577              1,381              (196)                       
Interest 5,800              5,800              3,638              (2,162)                    
Other -                   -                   14,536            14,536                   

Total revenues 1,050,377       1,050,377       1,073,393       23,016                   

EXPENDITURES
Public safety:

Police protection 334,000          334,000          348,472          (14,472)                 
Fire protection 724,338          724,338          627,460          96,878                   

Total public safety 1,058,338       1,058,338       975,932          82,406                   

Capital outlay 41,000            41,000            27,074            13,926                   

Total expenditures 1,099,338       1,099,338       1,003,006       96,332                   

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (48,961)           (48,961)           70,387            119,348                 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 1,129,672       1,129,672       1,129,672       -                         

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 1,080,711$     1,080,711$     1,200,059$     119,348$              
 
 

-43-



Township of Ada
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - Trails Fund
Year ended March 31, 2022

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

REVENUES
Property taxes 1,709,236$     1,709,236$     1,704,761$     (4,475)$                 
State grant -                   -                   84,635            84,635                   
Investment return (loss) -                   -                   (94,876)           (94,876)                 
Other -                   -                   643                  643                        

Total revenues 1,709,236       1,709,236       1,695,163       (14,073)                 

EXPENDITURES
Recreation and culture 112,467          112,467          43,069            69,398                   
Debt service:  

Principal 470,000          470,000          470,000          -                         
Interest and fees 5,935              5,935              5,385              550                        
Issuance costs 30,000            30,000            293,765          (263,765)               

Capital outlay 2,161,500       1,280,500       1,312,831       (32,331)                 

Total expenditures 2,779,902       1,898,902       2,125,050       (226,148)               

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (1,070,666)     (189,666)         (429,887)         (240,221)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Bond proceeds 2,000,000       245,273          14,885,680     14,640,407           
Bond premium -                   -                   403,269          403,269                 

 
Total other financing

 sources (uses) 2,000,000       245,273          15,288,949     15,043,676           

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 929,334          55,607            14,859,062     14,803,455           

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 683,688          683,688          683,688          -                         

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 1,613,022$     739,295$        15,542,750$  14,803,455$         
 
 

-44-



Township of Ada
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -  Parks and Open Space Fund
Year ended March 31, 2022

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

REVENUES
Interest 500$                500$                1,006$            506$                      

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay -                   390,287          390,287          -                         

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 500                  (389,787)         (389,281)         506                        
 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 488,421          488,421          488,421          -                         

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 488,921$        98,634$          99,140$          506$                      

-45-



Township of Ada
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -  Parks Fund
Year ended March 31, 2022

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfer out (7,602)$           (7,602)$           (7,602)$           -$                       

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (7,602)             (7,602)             (7,602)             -                         
 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 7,602              7,602              7,602              -                         

FUND BALANCES - ENDING -$                -$                -$                -$                       

 
 

  

-46-



Township of Ada
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -  Parks and Recreation Fund
Year ended March 31, 2022

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

REVENUES
Property taxes 714,108$        714,108$        712,262$        (1,846)$                 
State grants 3,225              3,225              3,953              728                        
Charges for services 28,000            28,000            48,289            20,289                   
Interest and rentals 39,200            51,200            63,741            12,541                   
Other:

Contributions 102,000          11,200            10,697            (503)                       
Miscellaneous 1,000              1,000              3,433              2,433                     

Total revenues 887,533          808,733          842,375          33,642                   

EXPENDITURES
Recreation and culture 632,046          632,046          581,755          50,291                   
Debt service:

Principal 60,000            60,000            60,000            -                         
Interest and fees 11,550            11,550            9,750              1,800                     
Issuance costs -                   -                   10,859            (10,859)                 

Capital outlay 384,450          384,450          290,715          93,735                   

Total expenditures 1,088,046       1,088,046       953,079          134,967                 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (200,513)         (279,313)         (110,704)         168,609                 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Bond proceeds -                   -                   769,320          769,320                 
Transfer in 7,602              7,602              7,602              -                         

Total other financing sources 7,602              7,602              776,922          769,320                 

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (192,911)         (271,711)         666,218          937,929                 
 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 972,338          972,338          972,338          -                         

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 779,427$        700,627$        1,638,556$     937,929$              

 
 

  
-47-



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



Township of Ada
BALANCE SHEET - component units
March 31, 2022

Downtown Brownfield 
Development Redevelopment

Authority Authority
ASSETS
Cash 978,936$            3,500$                     
Receivables 1,360                   -                            

Total assets 980,296$            3,500$                     

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities - payables 2,050$                 3,500$                     

Fund balance - unassigned 978,246              -                            

Total liabilities and fund balance 980,296$            3,500$                     
  

Total fund balance 978,246$            -$                         

Amounts reported for the component units in the 
statement of net position (page 13) are different because:

Capital assets used by the component units are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 118,650              -                            

Expense accrual - compensated absences (752)                     -                            

Net position (unrestricted) of the component units 1,096,144$         -$                         

-48-



Township of Ada
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - component units
Year ended March 31, 2022

Downtown Brownfield 
Development Redevelopment

Authority Authority
REVENUES
Property taxes 427,055$              -$                         
Tax increment financing -                         188,989                   
State grant 153,909                -                            
Charges for services 64,590                   -                            
Interest 1,595                     -                            
Other 2,333                     -                            

Total revenues 649,482                188,989                   

EXPENDITURES
Current:   

Public works 262,318                188,989                   
Community and economic development 171,560                -                            

Capital outlay 7,612                     -                            

Total expenditures 441,490                188,989                   

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 207,992                -                            

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 770,254                -                            

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 978,246$              -$                         
 

Net change in fund balance 207,992$              -$                         

Amounts reported for the component units in the 
statement of activities (page 14) are different because:

Capital assets:  
Deduct - depreciation provision (10,786)                 -                            

Net increase in compensated absences (752)                       -                            

Change in net position of component units 196,454$              -$                         

-49-



Township of Ada
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - Downtown Development Authority  -
Operating Fund
Year ended March 31, 2022

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

REVENUES
Property taxes 427,519$     427,519$     427,055$     (464)$                  
State grant 150,000        150,000        153,909        3,909                   
Charges for services 93,785          93,785          64,590          (29,195)               
Interest 3,000            3,000            1,595            (1,405)                 
Other 1,000            1,000            2,333            1,333                   

Total revenues 675,304        675,304        649,482        (25,822)               

EXPENDITURES
Public works 262,308        262,308        262,318        (10)                       
Community and economic development 269,731        269,731        171,560        98,171                
Capital outlay 67,000          67,000          7,612            59,388                

Total expenditures 599,039        599,039        441,490        157,549              

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 76,265          76,265          207,992        131,727              

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 770,254        770,254        770,254        -                       

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 846,519$     846,519$     978,246$     131,727$            
  
 

-50-



Township of Ada
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - Brownfield Redevelopment Authority  -
Operating Fund
Year ended March 31, 2022

Variance with
final budget

Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)

REVENUES
Tax increment financing 181,039$     181,039$     188,989$     7,950$                

EXPENDITURES
Public works 181,039        181,039        188,989        (7,950)                 

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -                -                -                -                       

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING -                -                -                -                       

FUND BALANCES - ENDING -$              -$              -$              -$                     
  

-51-



MEMORANDUM

Date: 9/26/22 

TO: Ada Township Board Members 
FROM: Haley Stichman, DDA Director 
RE: Resolution R-092622-1 Revising the Hours of Operations of the Ada Township Social District 

Background: 

At its meeting on September 12, the Township Board reviewed and discussed community and business member 
feedback and considered the Downtown Development Authority’s recommendation to expand the Social 
District to seven days a week. Based on Township Board Member feedback, staff drafted the attached 
Resolution R-092622-1 and updated Management and Maintenance Plan. These documents reflect the scaled 
back expansion that was discussed. If Resolution R-092622-1 is approved, the Ada Township Social District 
would begin operating Thursday-Saturday from 12 p.m. to 9:30 p.m. through January 31, 2023. 

Please note that I’m waiting to hear back from the MLCC regarding our ability to designate that we can include 
language that allows for the Social District to operate for special events occurring outside of these designated 
hours of operation. I expect to have additional information during the meeting on Monday, September 26. 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Township Board review and approve Resolution R-092622-1 revising the hours of 
operation of the Ada Township Social District through January 31, 2022. 

Requested Motion: Motion to approve Resolution 092622-1 for Revising the Hours of Operations of the Ada 

Township Social District and adopting a new Management and Maintenance Plan. 

XI B



RESOLUTION R - 092622-1 
ADA TOWNSHIP 

KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

A RESOLUTION REVISING THE HOURS OF OPERATIONS OF THE ADA TOWNSHIP 

SOCIAL DISTRICT CONTAINING A COMMONS AREA AND UPDATNG ITS 

MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE PLAN IN ORDER TO ALLOW CERTAIN ON 

PREMISES LIQUOR LICENSEES EXPANDED USE OF SHARED AREAS FOR 

CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL PURSUANT TO PUBLIC ACT 124 OF 2020 

At a Regular Meeting of the Township Board of Ada, Kent County, Michigan, held at the Township 
Hall on Monday, September 26, 2022, at 7:00 p.m., there were: 

PRESENT:  ____________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:  _____________________________________________________________________ 

The following Resolution was offered by Member _________________ and supported by Member 
_________________. 

WHEREAS, Public Act 124 of 2020 empowers the Township Board to designate Social Districts 
with Commons Areas where purchasers may consume alcoholic beverages sold by multiple qualified 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission licensees who obtain Social District Permits; and 

WHEREAS, the Ada Township Board previously authorized the Township Manager, or designee, 
to designate a social district through September 7, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, expanding days and times of the Social District will assist our downtown businesses 
in adapting to consumer preferences as well as attracting customers for enhanced outdoor dining, 
entertainment, and special event experiences in downtown Ada; and 

WHEREAS, the Ada Township Social District would continue to be managed by the Township 
through a collaboration with its Downtown Development Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has considered the potential impact of expanded days and times 
as proposed to Social District on public health, safety, and welfare; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. that the Township Board expands the hours of operation for the social district and
commons area, establishes the attached management and maintenance plan, and authorizes the
Township Manager or his designee to take all such other actions necessary in order to implement
this Resolution and comply with the Act.

2. that the Ada Township Social District will operate its expanded hours of operation from
September 29 through January 31, 2022, to accommodate special events, as outlined in the
management and maintenance plan.



Ada Township Board Resolution R-092622-1 
Page 2 of 3 

3. that the Township Manager or his designee is authorized and directed to forward this
Resolution and the attached maps and management and maintenance plans to the MLCC as
required by the Act together with this Resolution.

Upon a vote for the adoption of said resolution, the vote was: 
YES:   
NO:     
ABSENT:  

Resolution R-092622-1 adopted 
Date:  09/26/2022 

Signed___________________________________ 
    Jacqueline Smith 

Ada Township Clerk 



Ada Township Board Resolution R-092622-1 
Page 2 of 3 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 
Township Board of the Township of Ada, County of Kent, State of Michigan, at a meeting held on 
Monday, January 24, 2022, the original of which is on file in my office and available to the public. 
Public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, 
Act No. 267 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1976, as amended, including in the case a of a special 
or rescheduled meeting, notice by posting at least 18 hours prior to the time set for said meeting. 

Dated:   ________________________ 

______________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Township Clerk     



P a g e  | 1 

7330 Thornapple River Drive, P.O. Box 370, Ada, MI 49301 | 616.676.9191 | adatownshipmi.com 

ADA TOWNSHIP SOCIAL DISTRICT (SOCIAL DISTRICT AND COMMONS 

AREA) MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 

Pursuant to MCL 436.1551, the governing body of a local governmental unit may designate a Social District within its 

jurisdiction. Qualified licensees whose licensed premises are contiguous to the commons area within the Social District, 

and that have been approved for and issued a Social District Permit, may sell alcoholic liquor (beer, wine, mixed spirit 

drink, spirits, or mixed drinks) on their licensed premises to customers who may then consume the alcoholic liquor 

within the commons area of the Social District. The commons area is not considered part of the licensed premises for 

any of the licensees that hold a Social District Permit. 

The term commons area is defined by MCL 436.1551(8)(a): 

"Commons area" means an area within a social district clearly designated and clearly marked by the governing 

body of the local governmental unit that is shared by and contiguous to the premises of at least 2 other qualified 

licensees. Commons area does not include the licensed premises of any qualified licensee. 

The term qualified licensee is defined by MCL 436.1551(8)(c): 

"Qualified licensee" means any of the following: 

• A retailer that holds a license, other than a special license, to sell alcoholic liquor for consumption on the

licensed premises. (This includes the following license types: Class C, Tavern, A-Hotel, B-Hotel, Club, G-1, G-2,

Brewpub.)

• A manufacturer with an on-premises tasting room permit issued under section 536.

• A manufacturer that holds an off-premises tasting room license issued under section 536.

• A manufacturer that holds a joint off-premises tasting room license issued under section 536.

Ada Township wishes to establish a Social District and Commons Area in its downtown that shall help promote its 

businesses and enhance its residents and visitors’ enjoyment of the Village area. The establishment of the social district 

and commons area is intended to be a pilot program. 

1. The Township shall file the designation or revocation of a Social District with the MLCC as required under the

rules. Upon designation of a Social District, the Township shall send copies of the following items to the MLCC:

a. A copy of the resolution passed by the governing body designating the Social District and Commons

Area.

b. A copy of the management and maintenance plans, including the hours of operation, established by the

local governmental unit for the Social District and Commons Area.

c. A diagram or map that clearly shows the boundaries of the Social District and commons area. Please

indicate the name, address, and location of the qualified licensees that are contiguous to the commons

area on the diagram or map.

d. Such items shall be sent to:

DRAFT 



P a g e  | 2 

7330 Thornapple River Drive, P.O. Box 370, Ada, MI 49301 | 616.676.9191 | adatownshipmi.com 

By Mail: Michigan Liquor Control Commission - P.O. Box 30005 - Lansing, MI 48933 

By Fax: (517) 763-0059 

By Email: mlccrecords@michigan.gov 

2. Prior to any business applying to the MLCC for a Social District Permit, a qualified licensee must obtain approval

from the Township Board. To receive approval from the Township Board, the qualified licensee shall submit a

completed Page 2 of the Social District Permit Application (LCC-208) and any supporting documents to the

Township at least fourteen (14) days prior to the next Ada Township Board meeting. If the Township Board

approves of that application, the Township Clerk shall complete Page 3 of that same document and return a

copy to the qualified licensee. The qualified licensee shall thereafter submit the completed application to the

MLCC with the appropriate fees attached thereto.

A Management and Maintenance Plan for Ada Township’s Social District and Commons Area is outlined below. This plan 

establishes the rules and regulations that govern the Social District and Commons Area in order to help maintain the 

health, safety, or welfare of the Public. Violations of these rules shall operate as violations of Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission rules or other ordinances, rules and laws that remain in full force and effect within the Township and the 

Townships’ Social District and Commons Area. 

Note: All State of Michigan and Ada Township laws apply, including but not limited to those prohibiting public 

intoxication, impaired driving, open containers and serving alcohol to minors. 

Operation: 

1. The permitted hours of the Social District and Commons Area shall be open for use Thursday-Saturday from

12:00 p.m. to 9:30 p.m. through January 31, 2022. These hours are subject to change as necessary to maintain

the public health, safety, and welfare of the Ada community.

2. The Social District and Commons Area boundaries are outlined in Exhibit A. The selling, service, or public

possession of any alcoholic drink outside of those described areas of the Township or the adjoining MLCC

qualified businesses is prohibited.

3. No tents or lighting or privately owned tables or chairs or heating mechanisms or fire pits of any kind shall be

installed within the Social District or Commons Area without Township permission in advance.

4. No amplified sound shall be used in the Social District or Commons Area without Township permission.

5. Umbrellas may be installed with Township permission but shall not be mechanically fastened to street or

sidewalk surfaces.

6. Dogs are permitted in the Social District and Commons Area (the Township’s leash laws still apply, as does the

obligation to pick up after your dog).

7. Always remember to leave a place a little better than you found it.

Access: 

1. Pedestrian access shall be maintained to all buildings within the Social District and Commons Area as required by

Ada Township.

2. Emergency access shall be maintained to all adjacent properties in the Social District and Commons Area as

required by Ada Township.

Alcohol: 

mailto:mlccrecords@michigan.gov
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/lara/LCC208_695497_7.pdf


P a g e  | 3 

7330 Thornapple River Drive, P.O. Box 370, Ada, MI 49301 | 616.676.9191 | adatownshipmi.com 

1. Alcoholic beverages are allowed in the Commons Area only in accordance with a Social District Permit issued by

the Michigan Liquor Control Commission (MLCC), any accompanying MLCC regulations, and Ada Township

requirements.

2. ONLY Alcoholic beverages purchased by an adult 21 or over from the licensed premises of a Social District Permit

holder may be consumed by an adult 21 or over within the designated Commons Area.

3. NO OUTSIDE ALCOHOL ALLOWED. Alcohol purchased from any place other than the licensed premises of a Social

District Permit holder (bar or restaurant) may not be brought within the Social District or Commons area. You

may NOT bring alcohol from home or purchased from outside of the Social District into the Social District.

4. Only alcohol purchased from a specific MLCC qualified business may be possessed or consumed within that

MLCC qualified business. A qualified licensee shall prohibit entry into its licensed premises to any person who

has within their possession a container that contains any amount of alcohol that has not been purchased from

the qualified licensee.

5. Alcoholic beverages consumed in the Commons Area are required to be in designated cups per the

requirements of the MLCC and Ada Township. All licensed premises need to follow these specific guidelines

when serving alcohol:

a. The serving container must prominently display the licensee's trade name or logo or some other mark

that is unique to the licensee that sold the alcohol.

b. The serving container must prominently display a logo or some other mark that is unique to the

commons area.

c. The serving container is not made of glass.

d. The serving container does not have a liquid capacity over 16 ounces.

6. Social District Permit holders are responsible for the sale of alcohol on their licensed premises in accordance

with their individual Social District Permits and all MLCC rules and regulations, including but not limited to,

confirming the consumer’s identification and age, and prohibiting the sale of alcohol to intoxicated parties.

7. During regular patrols, the Kent County Sheriff will monitor the Social District and Commons Area as assigned for

compliance with MLCC and Ada Township rules and regulations.

8. Township staff, and/or contractors may also monitor the Commons Area and report compliance issues to the

proper authorities.

Seating, Tables, and Related Furnishings: 

1. Township staff, the Downtown Development Authority (DDA), and/or contractors will maintain any seating,

tables, and related furnishings that have been purchased and deployed by the Township or the DDA within the

Social District.

2. Seating, tables, and related furnishings that have been provided by individual Social District Permit Holders shall

be the sole responsibility of the Social District Permit Holders and must comply with ADA accessibility

requirements. Under certain circumstances, Social District Permit holders may use public space for seating,

tables, and related furnishings. Interested Social District Permit holders must contact the Ada Township DDA

Director for necessary reviews and municipal approvals.

3. Related furnishings are defined as planters, fencing, spatial delineators or other elements that are deployed as

part of a seating expansion within the Social District.

4. Ada Township is not responsible for providing, deployment, maintenance, operations, or security of any seating,

tables, or related furnishings that are deployed within the Commons Area.

Signage: 



P a g e  | 4 

7330 Thornapple River Drive, P.O. Box 370, Ada, MI 49301 | 616.676.9191 | adatownshipmi.com 

1. Township staff, the Downtown Development Authority (DDA), and/or contractors will provide signage that

designates the Commons Area and Commons Area boundaries.

2. Existing Ada Township sign ordinances are still applicable within the Social District and Commons Area.

Trash and Recycling: 

1. Township staff, the Downtown Development Authority (DDA), and/or contractors will provide temporary trash

cans and/or recycling cans within the Commons Area and at Commons Area boundaries and will maintain these

trash cans and/or recycling cans and conduct trash removal operations at these locations for the duration of the

Social District and Commons Area operation.

2. At locations where existing trash cans are already installed, Ada Township will continue their current

maintenance and trash removal operations.

Review: 

1. The Management and Maintenance Plan shall be included in any future Social District reviews conducted by Ada

Township.

2. The DDA Director and Township Manager shall be included in any review and consulted on any revisions to the

Social District and Management and Maintenance Plan.

3. The hours of operation will be subject to change in order to accommodate Special Events and as necessary to

maintain the public health, safety, and welfare of the Township.

4. Additional Commons Areas may be considered at a future date by the Ada Township Board.

5. Ada Township reserves the right to close the Social District and/or Commons Area at any time.

6. The Ada Township Board may revoke the Social District and/or Commons Area if their continued use may, in the

opinion of the Township Board, threaten the health, safety, or welfare of the Public or has become a public

nuisance. The Township Board maintains the authority to end any event that becomes a public nuisance or

threatens the health, safety, or welfare of the public prior to revocation of the Social District and/or Commons

Area and may designate someone to make that determination in an emergency. Prior to revocation of the Social

District or Commons Area, the Township Board shall hold at least 1 public hearing on that proposed revocation

and that public hearing shall occur at a public meeting that meets the requirements of a public meeting under

the Open Meetings Act.

Social Distancing and COVID-19 Response: 

1. All users of the Social District and the Commons Area shall follow all applicable State of Michigan social

distancing and mask guidance and requirements.

2. All users of Commons Area shall comply with State of Michigan Department of Health and Human Services,

including but not limited to, complying with limits on social gatherings and requirements relating to face masks.

3. All users of the Social District and Commons Area shall use them at their own risk.

Contact: 

All questions or concerns should be directed to the Downtown Development Authority (DDA): Haley Stichman, DDA 

Director, hstichman@adatownshipmi.com, (616) 676-9191 ext. 35. 

mailto:hstichman@adatownshipmi.com


P a g e  | 5 

7330 Thornapple River Drive, P.O. Box 370, Ada, MI 49301 | 616.676.9191 | adatownshipmi.com 

EXHIBIT A 

ADA TOWNSHIP SOCIAL DISTRICT MAP 



P a g e  | 6 

7330 Thornapple River Drive, P.O. Box 370, Ada, MI 49301 | 616.676.9191 | adatownshipmi.com 



P a g e  | 7 

7330 Thornapple River Drive, P.O. Box 370, Ada, MI 49301 | 616.676.9191 | adatownshipmi.com 

EXHIBIT B 

LIQUOR LICENSES ELIGIBLE FOR SOCIAL DISTRICT PERMIT* 
(*ESTABLISHMENTS LOCATED WITHIN THE PROPOSED SOCIAL DISTRICT BOUNDARIES.)

ADA GARAGE BAR & GRILL, 518 ADA DR SE ADA, MI 49301 

ADA VILLAGE GENERAL STORE, 7430 RIVER ST SE ADA, MI 49301 (IN PROCESS – CLASS C REDEVELOPMENT LIQUOR 

LICENSE) 

GRAVEL BOTTOM CRAFT BREWERY, 452 ADA DR SE STE 100 ADA, MI 49301 

LUNA OF ADA, 7471 RIVER ST ADA, MI 49301 (IN PROCESS – CLASS C REDEVELOPMENT LIQUOR LICENSE) 

NONNA'S: THE TRATTORIA, 584 ADA DR SE ADA, MI 49301 

MUDPENNY, 496 ADA DR SE STE 101 ADA, MI 49301 

SCHNITZ ADA GRILL, 597 ADA DR SE ADA, MI 49301 

ZEYTIN TURKISH RESTAURANT, 7437 RIVER ST SE ADA, MI 49301 



MEMORANDUM

Date: 09/20/22 

TO: Ada Township Board 
FROM: Department of Planning 
RE: Request for Rezoning to the PUD District and for Approval of Preliminary PUD Plan for 

the "Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC" Planned Unit Development 

Overview of Request: 

A RP-1 Planned Unit Development (PUD) is proposed for a 13-lot single-family home development on 
the subject property as depicted on the submitted plans.   

The subject site contains about 60 acres (59.69 acres) and is zoned RP-1, with a court ruling from 1972 
allowing for development of mobile homes on the property.  The developer is now pursuing Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) approval for a 12-lot (previously 13 lots; see below) single family home 
development on this property as depicted in the submitted concept plan.  The Township Master Plan 
designates the property as Rural Preservation (RP). 

The subject site is located on the west side of Egypt Valley Ave., between 3 Mile and 4 Mile Roads.  The 
site contains significant topography with significant changes in slope, as well as extensive woodlands, 
and (per the applicant’s information) wetlands. 

As part of the PUD application, the applicant requested the following deviations from the applicable 
requirements of the RP-1 Zoning District: 

• Minimum front yard setbacks:  40’ requested; 50’ required.
• Minimum side yard setbacks: 40’ total between buildings; 50’ total required between buildings

(20’ minimum side yards requested and allowed by Ordinance).
• Minimum rear yard setbacks:  40’ requested; 50’ required.
• Minimum lot areas:  1.5 acres requested; 5 acres required (actual net density equates to

approximately one home per 4.6 acres due to open space preservation).
• Minimum lot widths:  200’ requested; 270’ required.

Concerning lot size/density, Section 78-449 of the Zoning Ordinance (Variation from other zoning 
standards for PUDs), a density of up to one home per 3 acres is allowed if 40% or more of the site is 
designated as open space.  The applicant’s plan shows approximately 41.4 – 43.9 % of the entire property 
being designated as open space (24.76 to 26.26 acres).  The applicant is currently working with the 
Township to dedicate the permanent open space. 

The proposed layout, as shown on the attached plan, initially consisted of eleven home lots along the 
primary internal road, with two additional home lots (12 and 13) utilizing a separate, shared access 
driveway; however, at the Planning Commission meeting the applicant made the decision to combine lots 
12 and 13 into a single lot. 

The proposed private road will be placed opposite Roma Terrace Dr. (at Egypt Valley), which is an 
optimal design solution to avoid offset intersections.  The middle portion of the site is generally the 
lowest portion of the site, with most of the wetlands and open space being shown in this area (approx. 
15.23 acres).  An additional open space area totaling about 5.05 acres is proposed for the northwest and 
western edge of the property; this area will include the common septic fields for the entire development. 

XI C



Summary of Public Input: 

Public comment was heard from four (4) residents in the immediate area.  Concerns that were expressed 
included proposed lot sizes, existing wetland areas, and potential on-site waste disposal system and 
stormwater issues.  

Recommended Action: 

1. Approval of the attached Ordinance to rezone the property to the RP-1/PUD zoning district.

2. Approval of the attached Resolution approving the Preliminary PUD Plan, subject to conditions.

Following approval of the rezoning and Preliminary PUD Plan, the applicant will be required to submit a 
Final PUD Plan application to the Planning Commission for approval. 



ADA TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE NO.  O-092622-1 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ADA TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE 
(Chapter 78 of the Ada Township Code of Ordinances, as Amended) 

Whereas Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC has submitted a petition requesting that the official Zoning Map of 
Ada Township be amended to change the zoning district of the property described below from the RP-1 
District to the RP-1/PUD “Rural Preservation 1/Planned Unit Development” Districts; and 

Whereas, the applicant has also submitted a Preliminary Planned Unit Development for the development 
of 12 single-family lots to be accessed from Egypt Valley Avenue via a private road (Lots 1-11) and 
Egypt Valley Avenue (Lot 12), and 

Whereas, the Ada Township Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 15, 2022 on the 
petition for rezoning and the Preliminary Planned Unit Development; and  

Whereas, following the public hearing, the Ada Township Planning Commission recommended that the 
Preliminary Development Plan be approved and that the subject property be rezoned to the RP-1 and PUD 
Districts; now therefore 

THE TOWNSHIP OF ADA ORDAINS: 

Section 1.  Rezoning of Property from the RP-1 Zoning District to the RP-1 and PUD Zoning Districts. 

The following described property is hereby rezoned from the RP-1 District to the RP-1 “Rural 
Preservation 1” and PUD "Planned Unit Development" Districts. The Zoning Map of Ada Township, 
Kent County, Michigan shall be amended to show that said property is within both the “RP-1” and the 
“PUD" Districts: 

The East 60 acres of the North half of the Southeast quarter of Section 5, Town 7 North, Range 
10 West (3201 Egypt Valley Ave. NE; Parcel No. 41-15-05-400-002) 

Section 2.  Severability. 

The various parts, sections and clauses of this ordinance are hereby declared to be severable.  If any part, 
sentence, paragraph, section or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of the ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3.  Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon the expiration of seven (7) days after 
publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the Township. 

____________________ _________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Township Clerk Ross Leisman, Township Supervisor 



Ada Township Ordinance No. O-092622-1 
Page 2 of 2 

I hereby certify that this ordinance was adopted by the Ada Township Board in regular session 
held on Monday, September 26, 2022, and that it was published in the 
______________________________ on                                                     ___________, 2022. 

___________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Township Clerk 



ADA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 15, 2022 REGULAR MEETING 

A regular meeting of the Ada Township Planning Commission was held on Thursday,  
September 15, 2022 at 5:30 p.m., at the Ada Township Hall Assembly Room, 7330 Thornapple 
River Dr., Ada Michigan.  

I. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Korth called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL

Members Present:  Burton, Easter, Heglund, Korth, Moyer 
Members Absent:  Butterfield, Jacobs 
Staff Present:  Bajdek, Buckley, Fitzpatrick, Said, Suchy 
Others Present:  18 

Chair Korth welcomed Mr. James Moyer to the Planning Commission. 

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Moved by Heglund, supported by Easter, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried. 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 18, 2022, REGULAR MEETING

Moved by Heglund, supported by Moyer, to approve the August 18, 2022, minutes as presented. 
Motion carried. 

V. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Preliminary PUD Plan, proposal for 13 single family residential home sites
on 60 acres in the RP-1 Zoning District, 3201 Egypt Valley Ave. NE, Parcel
No. 41-15-05-400-002, Paul C. Heule, Manager, Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC,
(property owner Egypt Valley 3201 LLC)

Ed Pynnonen, 7114 Gladys SE, Grand Rapids MI 49546, representing property owner, Paul Heule, 
presented his request for a 13-lot community with approximately 40% open space.  He said each 
lot would be serviced by individual septic tanks and wells and with a community drainfield. 

Korth opened the public hearing at 5:34 p.m. 

Jim Crosby, 2975 Egypt Valley Avenue NE, said he thinks the lots should be limited to a 5-acre 
minimum and due to wetlands, limited to buildable acres. 

Nevin Zolenski, 6151 3 Mile Road NE, said that he felt the number of units proposed was excessive 
and he thought 6 units was enough.  He shared concerns about the amount of wetlands area and 
possible drainfield/storm water/septic issues. 

(Excerpted) 
Draft 



Ada Township Planning Commission      Excerpted   Draft
Minutes of the September 15, 2022 Regular Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

Todd VanDoorne, 3233 Egypt Valley Avenue NE, said that he felt the 5-acre minimum should be 
withheld and he shared concern about the wetlands. 

Jennifer Marsh, 6169 3 Mile Road NE, said that looking at the proposal she was disappointed to 
see lots that were less than 5-acres especially since it was an Ada Township requirement that in 
the RP-1 district there was a 5-acre minimum lot size.  She also shared concerns about the 
wetlands and that it should be limited to buildable acreage. 

There was no other public comment and the public hearing was closed at 5:49 p.m. 

Director of Planning, Said, stated that the Planning staff and Township Engineer met with the 
applicant at a Plan Review Meeting and no major concerns were identified at that time.  Said 
explained that this was a Preliminary PUD process and at the time of the Final PUD, they would 
need to come back and ensure approval from the Kent County Health Department for the well 
and septic and address other aspects; riparian protection and drainage/storm water requirement. 

Mr. Pynnonen went over the details on the development plan drawing and explained:  the location 
of the drainfield and the drainage process, locations of the designated open space area, showed 
how the smaller lot sizes allowed flexibility to carve out lots outside of the wetland areas, the 
septic systems would be maintained by a waste water treatment operator, and plan to put in a 
test well and have inspected by the Kent County Health Department. 

Bajdek explained/clarified the zoning requirements of a PUD development (40% or greater is 
open space) within the RP-1 district.  Bajdek stated that if a parcel was developed under a PUD 
(Planned Unit Development), the zoning ordinance allows for a density of up to 1 home per 3 
acres vs. the 5-acre minimum requirement if not developed under a PUD.  

There was extended discussion amongst the Commissioners, Planning Staff and the applicant 
regarding:  details on homeowner’s association protection vs. home owner responsibility, the 
process of how an agreement between the association and the Township would work, the wetland 
areas and what was buildable/riparian protection, the density of lot size for a PUD vs. not PUD, 
and the overall drainfield/septic system process/routing. 

John Male, Exxel Engineering, said he was representing the developer and briefly explained the 
wetland areas and the 25’ riparian protection on the development plans. 

Mr. Pynnonen concluded that the proposed preliminary plan met the requirements of the PUD, 
and that he would consider any conditions the Planning Commission required, to move forward 
with an approval.  

There was additional Commissioner discussion about the zoning language and clarification of the 
gross density of the lot size and Mr. Pynnonen agreed to reduce the number of lots proposed 
from 13 to 12 lots by combining lots 12 and 13 into 1 single lot. 

Moved by Burton, supported by Moyer, to recommend approval to the Township Board, of the 
Preliminary PUD Plan for 12 single family residential home sites at 3201 Egypt Valley Avenue, 
subject to the following conditions: 



Ada Township Planning Commission      Excerpted   Draft
Minutes of the September 15, 2022 Regular Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

1. The approved PUD Plan shall be carried out in substantial conformance with the “Hidden
Lakes at Ada Preliminary Development Plan” dated 8/17/22 and prepared by Exxel
Engineering, and with the change of combining lots 12 and 13 into a single lot.

2. The proposed development shall consist of a maximum of 12 single-family dwelling units.

3. A storm water permit application and accompanying construction plans for the storm
water management system shall be submitted, subject to review and approval of a permit
by the Planning Department, prior to initiation of site improvements.

4. There shall be no street lighting on the property.

5. The Construction plans for public water and sewer main extensions shall be subject to
issuance of required State permits and approval by the Utilities Director, prior to initiation
of site improvements, and prior to issuance of building permits.

6. A wetland permit shall be obtained from the State of Michigan prior to issuance of any
building permit.

7. Final PUD plans shall include all submittals as specified in the Zoning Ordinance, including
but not limited to:

- Proposed site elevations, at contours of two feet.
- Proposed landscaping including species, sizes, and quantities of all plant

materials to be installed, and irrigation system coverage.
- All significant existing plant materials (specifically trees) to be retained and

removed on the site.  Any trees over 18” caliper and 5’ height that would be
removed be identified.

- Layout and dimensions of all proposed driveways.
- All existing and proposed utility lines, including gas and electric.
- Location, height, and design of all proposed fencing or walls.
- Location, height and style of all proposed exterior lighting.
- Elevation drawings including façade materials.
- Stormwater drainage plan.

8. At the time of final PUD review, the applicant shall identify all homeowner association
responsibilities, including, but not limited to, the following:

 Road maintenance.
 Septic system.
 Open space/common area maintenance.
 Stormwater management.

9. The applicant shall finalize an agreement with the Township for dismissal of the previous
1972 court order prior to the issuance of any permits for the site.

10. Identify building envelopes not to exceed 4,000 sq. ft. each lot.

Motion carried by roll call vote 5-0.



MEMORANDUM 

Date: 09-06-22 

TO: Ada Township Planning Commission 
FROM: Department of Planning 
RE: September 15, 2022 – Preliminary Planned Unit Development (PUD) - 

13 Single-Family Residential Home Sites on +/- 60 acres, 3201 Egypt 
Valley Ave., Parcel No. 41-15-05-400-002, Hidden Lakes at Ada LLC/Paul 
C. Heule

Request Overview 
The applicant requests preliminary approval of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) for a 13-lot 
single-family home development on the subject property as depicted on the submitted plans.   

The subject site contains about 60 acres (59.69 acres) and is zoned RP-1, with a court ruling from 
1972 allowing for development of mobile homes on the property.  The developer intends to pursue 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) review and approval for a 13-lot single family home development 
on this property as depicted in the submitted concept plan.  The Township Master Plan designates 
the property as Rural Preservation (RP). 

The subject site is located on the west side of Egypt Valley Ave., between 3 Mile and 4 Mile Roads. 
The site contains significant topography with significant changes in slope, as well as extensive 
woodlands, and (per the applicant’s information) wetlands. 

The applicant appeared at the July 21, 2022 Planning Commission meeting for the required PUD 
Pre-Application Conference and received concurrence and support for the conceptual request from 
the Planning Commission. 

Analysis 
As part of the PUD application, the applicant requests the following deviations from the applicable 
requirements of the RP-1 Zoning District: 

• Minimum front yard setbacks:  40’ requested; 50’ required.
• Minimum side yard setbacks: 40’ total between buildings; 50’ total required between

buildings (20’ minimum side yards requested and allowed by Ordinance).
• Minimum rear yard setbacks:  40’ requested; 50’ required.
• Minimum lot areas:  1.5 acres requested; 5 acres required (actual net density equates to

approximately one home per 4.6 acres due to open space preservation).
• Minimum lot widths:  200’ requested; 270 feet required.

Concerning lot size/density, Section 78-449 of the Zoning Ordinance (Variation from other zoning 
standards for PUDs), a density of up to one home per 3 acres is allowed if 40% or more of the site 
is designated as open space.  The applicant’s plan shows approximately 41.4 – 43.9 % of the entire 
property being designated as open space (24.76 to 26.26 acres).  The applicant is currently working 

XI D



with the Township to dedicate the permanent open space. 

The proposed layout consists of eleven home lots along the primary internal road, with two 
additional home lots (12 and 13) utilizing a separate, shared access driveway.  The proposed 
primary road will be placed opposite Roma Terrace Dr. (also private) at Egypt Valley, which is an 
optimal design solution to avoid offset intersections.  The middle portion of the site is generally the 
lowest portion of the site, with most of the wetlands and open space being shown in this area 
(approx. 15.23 acres).  An additional open space area totaling about 5.05 acres is proposed for the 
northwest and western edge of the property; this area will include the common septic fields for the 
entire development.   

The following additional comments are also provided: 

- Plans now show the hiking path within the open spaces around Lots 3 – 10, with extensions
connecting to Lots 1, Lots 12-13, and into the open space area adjacent to Lot 11.

- Final plans will need to include required riparian protection adjacent to the wetland areas,
per Sec. 78-32 of the Zoning Ordinance.  This includes indicating a 15-foot natural
vegetation zone and a 10-foot transition zone, each, for a 25’ total buffer area.

- The applicant will need to secure a professional operator for maintenance and operation of
the on-site water and sewer systems and will need to establish an agreement with the
Township for maintenance of the system should there ever be a system failure.

- No streetlights are proposed for this project; a Condition of Approval is included to address
this.

- Because the proposed development consists of less than 40 units, per the Zoning Ordinance
no traffic study is required.

- In preliminary communications with the Township, the applicant has agreed in concept to
a written agreement dismissing the 1972 court judgement allowing mobile home
development on this property.

- In addition to requirements specified in the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant will need to
identify the following at the time of final PUD review:

o All planned homeowner association responsibilities, including, but not limited to, the
following:

 Road maintenance.
 Septic system.
 Open space/common area maintenance.
 Stormwater management.

o Clarification of proposed open space amounts (including whether the stormwater
management area is counted separately from the adjacent open space area).

o Forested areas, and areas and methods of tree retention, to retain as much of the
natural area as possible (which also helps reduce erosion).



o Grading plans and adherence to all required PUD submittal requirements.

o The following for well and septic:

 Kent County Health Department approval for the proposed well and septic.
 Explanation of placement of the septic field at the highest point on the site,

and proposed pumping to be used.

o Confirmation of adherence to Township riparian protection standards as specified in
the Zoning Ordinance.

o Confirmation of wetlands location(s) and wetland mitigation approval (from the
State of Michigan) for any wetland disturbance/removal (such as for the proposed
shared driveway for Lots 12 and 13).

PUD Standards and Commentary 
The following standards for review as part of a PUD application are provided, from Sec. 78-458 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, along with Staff commentary: 

a. The PUD conforms with the policies, goals, guidelines and recommendations contained in
the master plan concerning land use, density, vehicular access and circulation, pedestrian
circulation, building placement, character and design, landscaping, signage and amenities.

Staff believes that the proposed development complies with the Master Plan
recommendations for this property.  It is a low-density residential development with
significant open space preservation. 

b. The PUD is consistent with and promotes the intent of this article and this chapter.

Staff believes that this standard is met. 

c. If the PUD contains more than one type of use, the uses are arranged in a manner, and
buffers are provided as necessary and appropriate, so as to prevent adverse impacts of one
use upon another, and so as to create a logical relationship of one use to another.

Not applicable. 

d. The PUD is compatible with surrounding uses of land and the character of the surrounding
area. The design and placement of buildings and other structures, parking, lighting, signs,
refuse storage, landscaping and other elements of the proposed PUD ensures compatibility
with surrounding properties and properties within the PUD, and ensures that the
development, when viewed from public rights-of-way, contributes to the desired character
of the surrounding area.

Staff believes this standard is met. 

e. The PUD is designed to have minimal adverse effect on the environment and to preserve
and maintain to the maximum extent feasible the quality of surface and groundwater
resources and the natural topography, vegetation and other natural features of the site.



Staff believes this standard is met, due to preservation of more than 40% of the property 
as open space. 

f. The PUD will not place demands on public services and facilities in excess of their capacity.

Staff believes this standard is met, as there will be only 13 homes on the subject property, 
with minimal impact on traffic an no impact on local utilities. 

g. Any approved community water or sewer facilities which are not connected to a public
system at the time of construction shall be designed as a complete unit to serve the entire
PUD project, with provision for connection to a public system if and when a public system
is provided at a future date.

The applicant proposes a unified septic sewer system to serve the entire development, but 
also proposes individual wells for each development lot.  However, it is not expected that 
this site will be served by public water and sewer in the foreseeable future. 

h. Safe and efficient ingress and egress has been provided to the property, especially with
regard to pedestrian safety and convenience, traffic flow and control, and access in case of
fire or another emergency. The amount and type of traffic generated by the PUD shall not
exceed the capacity of existing and proposed streets. Curbs, gutters and sidewalks may be
required if it is determined that such improvements are necessary for reasons of public
safety.

Staff believes this standard has been met; one primary street is provided accessing Egypt 
Valley, opposite the Roma Terrace driveway to minimize conflicts.  A cul-de-sac bulb
meeting Township requirements is proposed for the terminus of the primary street.  An 
internal natural walking trail is included in the plans for the convenience of future residents. 

i. The PUD shall be designed so that the additional traffic generated by the PUD will not create
a substantial detrimental effect on neighboring properties or on the health, safety and
welfare of township residents, including the residents of the proposed PUD.

Staff believes this standard has been met with the plan as proposed. 

j. The PUD is otherwise consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the township.

Staff believes this standard has been met with the plan as proposed 

k. Except to the extent that conformance with the standards of this chapter is explicitly waived
in the proposed PUD as permitted in this article, the PUD shall conform with all other
applicable standards and requirements of this chapter.

No response required. 

Summation and Recommendation 
The proposed PUD has been prepared to reflect the conditions of the subject site and is consistent 
with the area around the subject site.  As such, Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary PUD 
Plan, subject to the following conditions: 



1. The approved PUD Plan shall be carried out in substantial conformance with the “Hidden
Lakes at Ada Preliminary Development Plan” dated 8/17/22 and prepared by Exxel
Engineering.

2. The proposed development shall consist of a maximum of 13 single-family dwelling units.

3. A storm water permit application and accompanying construction plans for the storm
water management system shall be submitted, subject to review and approval of a permit
by the Planning Department, prior to initiation of site improvements.

4. There shall be no street lighting on the property.

5. The Construction plans for public water and sewer main extensions shall be subject to
issuance of required State permits and approval by the Utilities Director, prior to initiation
of site improvements, and prior to issuance of building permits.

6. A wetland permit shall be obtained from the State of Michigan prior to issuance of any
building permit.

7. Final PUD plans shall include all submittals as specified in the Zoning Ordinance, including
but not limited to:

- Proposed site elevations, at contours of two feet.
- Proposed landscaping including species, sizes, and quantities of all plant

materials to be installed, and irrigation system coverage.
- All significant existing plant materials (specifically trees) to be retained and

removed on the site.
- Layout and dimensions of all proposed driveways.
- All existing and proposed utility lines, including gas and electric.
- Location, height, and design of all proposed fencing or walls.
- Location, height and style of all proposed exterior lighting.
- Elevation drawings including façade materials.
- Stormwater drainage plan.

8. At the time of final PUD review, the applicant shall identify all homeowner association
responsibilities, including, but not limited to, the following:

 Road maintenance.
 Septic system.
 Open space/common area maintenance.
 Stormwater management.

9. The applicant shall finalize an agreement with the Township for dismissal of the previous
1972 court order prior to the issuance of any permits for the site.

(Upon conclusion of Planning Commission review, the request will go on to the Township Board 
for final action.  After that, the applicant may submit a request for final Planned Unit Development 
approval.) 



ADA TOWNSHIP RESOLUTION R- 092622-2 

A Resolution to approve a Preliminary PUD Plan for the "Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC" Planned Unit 
Development. 

At a Regular Meeting of the Township Board of Ada, Kent County, Michigan, held on Monday, 
September 26, 2022, at 7:00 p.m., there were: 

PRESENT: 
ABSENT: 

WHEREAS, Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC has submitted an application for approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan for property located at 3201 Egypt Valley Ave. NE, and 

WHEREAS, the Ada Township Planning Commission, after the holding of a public hearing regarding 
the application, has recommended that the Township Board approve the Preliminary Development Plan, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 

1. The Preliminary Development Plan, hereinafter referred to as the "PUD", for the property
referenced above is hereby approved.

2. Approval of the PUD, subject to the conditions set forth herein, is based on the following findings
and conclusions:

a. The proposed PUD conforms with the policies, goals, guidelines and recommendations
contained in the Ada Township Master Plan, and achieves the goals of the above plan to a
greater extent than would development of the property under the conventional zoning
standards.

b. The PUD is consistent with and promotes the intent of the Planned Unit Development
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance.

c. The PUD is compatible with surrounding uses of land and the character of the surrounding
area.

d. The PUD is designed to have minimal adverse effect on the environment.

e. The PUD will not place demands on public services and facilities in excess of their capacity.

f. The PUD provides safe and efficient vehicular and pedestrian circulation and traffic.

g. Additional traffic generated by the PUD will not create a substantial detrimental effect on
neighboring properties or the Township at-large.



h. The PUD is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the Township.

3. Approval of the PUD is subject to conformance with the following conditions, which are deemed
necessary to meet the intent and purpose of the PUD provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, to
protect the public health, safety and welfare, and to comply with the standards for approval of
PUD's contained in the Zoning Ordinance:

a. The approved PUD Plan shall be carried out in substantial conformance with the “Hidden Lakes 
at Ada Preliminary Development Plan” dated 8/17/22 and prepared by Exxel Engineering, and
with the change of combining lots 12 and 13 into a single lot.

b. The proposed development shall consist of a maximum of 12 single-family dwelling units.

c. A storm water permit application and accompanying construction plans for the storm water
management system shall be submitted, subject to review and approval of a permit by the
Planning Department, prior to initiation of site improvements.

d. There shall be no street lighting on the property.

e. The Construction plans for public water and sewer main extensions shall be subject to issuance
of required State permits and approval by the Utilities Director, prior to initiation of site
improvements, and prior to issuance of building permits.

f. A wetland permit shall be obtained from the State of Michigan prior to issuance of any building
permit.

g. Final PUD plans shall include all submittals as specified in the Zoning Ordinance, including
but not limited to:

- Proposed site elevations, at contours of two feet.
- Proposed landscaping including species, sizes, and quantities of all plant materials to

be installed, and irrigation system coverage.
- All significant existing plant materials (specifically trees) to be retained and removed

on the site.  Any trees over 18” caliper and 5’ height that would be removed be
identified.

- Layout and dimensions of all proposed driveways.
- All existing and proposed utility lines, including gas and electric.
- Location, height, and design of all proposed fencing or walls.
- Location, height and style of all proposed exterior lighting.
- Elevation drawings including façade materials.
- Stormwater drainage plan.

h. At the time of final PUD review, the applicant shall identify all homeowner association
responsibilities including, but not limited to, the following:

 Road maintenance.
 Septic system.
 Open space/common area maintenance.
 Stormwater management.

i. The applicant shall finalize an agreement with the Township for dismissal of the previous 1972
court order prior to the issuance of any permits for the site.

j. Identify building envelopes not to exceed 4,000 sq. ft. each lot.



Upon a vote for the adoption of said resolution, the vote was: 

AYES: 
NAYS: 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Township 
Board of the Township of Ada, County of Kent, State of Michigan, at a meeting held on September 26, 
2022, the original of which is on file in my office and available to the public. Public notice of said 
meeting was given pursuant to and in compliance with the Open Meetings Act. 

Dated: ________________________ 

___________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Township Clerk 















MEMORANDUM

Date: 9/20/22 

TO:   Ada Township Board 
FROM:   Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: Purchase of Boots for Fire Department 

Background: 

The Township budgeted $10,000 in public safety funds for the purchase of new boots for the Fire 
Department in the current fiscal year. Chief Murray has provided the attached memo and quote from 
Apollo Fire Equipment.  

The total cost for 16 pairs of boots per the attached quote is $7,760.00 ($485.00 per pair). The 
Township has submitted a claim for seven of the boots to be replaced due to them being damaged in 
a fire the department responded to in Plainfield Township. If/when this money is received it would be 
receipted against the expenditure to offset the cost as a reimbursement. If the full cost of those seven 
pairs of boots is reimbursed it would lower the cost to the Township to $4,365.00.  

The Public Safety Committee reviewed the attached request from Chief Murray at their August 31, 
2022 meeting. The committee has reviewed the request and recommends approval to the Township 
board. 

Recommendation: 

Staff supports the recommendation from the Public Safety Committee to purchase 16 pairs of boots 
as quoted by Apollo Fire Equipment.  

Requested Motion: Motion to Approve Public Safety Committee Recommendation to Purchase 16 
Pairs of Boots from Apollo Fire Equipment for an Amount Not to Exceed $7,760.00.  

XI E







MEMORANDUM

Date: 9/20/22 

TO:   Ada Township Board 
FROM:   Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: Purchase of Turnout Gear Pants for Fire Department 

Background: 

Chief Murray has provided a memo outlining that seven pairs of turnout gear pants were damaged in 
the Township’s response to the fire in Plainfield Township last month. This information has been 
submitted to the insurance company related to this fire, but the Township does not to move forward 
and purchase new equipment while it waits for any potential reimbursement.  

The attached quote from West Shore Fire Inc. will replace seven sets of turnout gear pants at a cost 
of $1,515.00 per set for a total cost of $10,605.00.  

The Public Safety Committee reviewed the attached request from Chief Murray at their August 31, 
2022 meeting. The committee has reviewed the request and recommends approval to the Township 
board. 

Recommendation: 

Staff supports the recommendation from the Public Safety Committee to purchase seven pairs of 
turnout gear pants as quoted by West Shore Fire Inc.  

Requested Motion: Motion to Approve Public Safety Committee Recommendation to Purchase 7 Pairs 
of Turnout Gear Pants from West Shore Fire Inc. for an Amount Not to Exceed $10,605.00.  

XI F







MEMORANDUM

Date: 9/20/22 

TO:   Ada Township Board 
FROM:   Julius Suchy, Township Manager 
RE: Approve Managed IT Services Proposal from IT Right 

Background: 

The Township currently utilizes I.T. Right for IT services, but only on a reactive basis because we are 
not currently operating under a contract for services. IT Right began working for the Township when 
Jon Gibson ended his contract services for IT with the Township in the Spring of 2021. I.T. Right had 
been setup as a backup for Mr. Gibson’s clients and that is when they stepped in and started working 
for the Township.  

Over the past year I.T. Right has pushed for the Township to enter into an annual contract like their 
other clients. The Township currently pays for IT services based on an hourly rate of approximately 
$147.00 per hour.  

The IT Committee requested proposals from I.T. Right and Microvisions an IT company that other 
municipalities in West Michigan had provided positive references on. Following receipt of the 
proposals the companies provided presentations to the IT Committee over the past few weeks. 
Microvisions provided a quote to provide services on an annual basis for $63,600.00 (with a $6,000 
onboarding fee) and I.T. Right provided a quote of $39,360.00 (with a $4,000 onboarding fee). 

The IT Committee believes that both firms are qualified and capable of providing IT services and is 
recommending I.T Right to be awarded the managed IT services contract. The committee felt that I.T. 
Right would be a better fit moving forward for the Township based on their presentation and as a 
bonus their proposal was more affordable. I have provided a copy of the contract as well as a copy of 
the PPT proposal that was presented by I.T. Right. Below is a summary of the services covered by 
the contract:  

In short, the contract would cover the following… 

• Unlimited Remote Service (24/7/365)
• Unlimited Onsite Service
• Windows and 3rd party Software Patching
• Anti-Virus/Anti-Ransomware protection
• 24/7 Endpoint Detection and Response Monitoring by Security Operating Center (SOC)
• Managed Online Backup
• Cyber Security Management:

o Proactive TAM (Technology Alignment Management) emphasizing Industry Best
Practices

o VCIO (Virtual Chief Info Officer) Account Management
o Center for Internet Security Benchmark testing and Controls implementation
o End User Security Training

XI G



Entering an annual contract with I.T. Right will allow the Township to have piece of mind when it 
comes to cyber security management and end user security training, something that the Township 
does not currently offer. This will also allow the Township to completely end its contract services with 
Aunalytics who had previously been providing end point protection but at a very basic level. The 
proposal will also allow the Township to meet quarterly in a proactive manner with I.T. Right as it 
works to constantly improve its IT environment.   

This will be a shift for the Township to move from paying an hourly rate for reactive services to an 
annual fee that will allow for actively managed IT services which will result in an improved IT 
environment for the Township and its staff.  

The annual fee of $39,360 will be split up as indicated below – this is based on the number of 
computers and potential IT issues by department. This allocation can be revisited in the future if 
needed.  

Recommendation: 

Staff supports the recommendation from the IT Committee to approve the managed IT services 
agreement with I.T. Right for a period of three years. Although it is a three-year agreement, the 
Township can exit the agreement if it is unsatisfied with the level of services received.   

Requested Motion: Motion to Approve I.T. Right Three-Year Managed Services Proposal for an 
Amount Not to Exceed $39,360.00 Annually with a $4,000 One-Time Onboarding Fee.  

Fund % Allocation Cost
General (101) 50%  $           19,680.00 

Public Safety (205) 10%  $             3,936.00 
Parks & Recreation 

(208) 15%  $             5,904.00 

DDA (248) 5%  $             1,968.00 
Sewer (590) 10%  $             3,936.00 
Water (591) 10%  $             3,936.00 

Total 100%  $           39,360.00 



P a g e  | 1

This Agreement is made effective as of by and between , 
and I.T. Right, of 5815 East Clark Road, Bath Michigan 48808.
In this Agreement, the party who is 
contracting to receive services shall be 
referred to as "The Client", and the party 
who will be providing the services shall be 
referred to as "I.T. RIGHT".  I.T. RIGHT 
has a background in Computer technology 
and is willing to provide services to The
Client based on this background.  The Client 
desires to have services provided by I.T. 
RIGHT.

Therefore, the parties agree as follows:

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES.

Beginning on                     I.T. RIGHT will
provide the following services (collectively,
the "Services"):  Repair and maintenance of
computer equipment and the computer
network.  This includes the existing
computers and related network equipment
within the client’s office(s).

2. SERVICES NOT COVERED.    I.T.
Right reserves the right to charge an hourly
rate for labor related to the design and
implementation of new equipment or
technologies. The client will be notified
ahead of time of any extra charges involved
before the work is started.    Projects
expected to exceed Eight (8) hours of labor
including but not limited to the replacement
of servers are considered new technology,
are not covered under this contract and will
be billed separately.

3. Services Not Provided.  I.T. Right will
not provide structured cabling services.   I.T. 
Right will not climb into ceilings, attics or 
crawlspaces.  I.T. Right will not climb upon 
roofs, trees or polls; or use equipment like 
tall ladders or bucket trucks to service or 
replace equipment.

4. Third Party Support Agreements.  To
the extent that I.T. Right is asked to support
third party software or hardware; The Client
agrees to maintain appropriate support
agreements with the manufacturers or
resellers of those products such as software
support contracts and/or onsite extended
warranties for applicable hardware.

5. PAYMENT.  The Client will pay an
annual fee to I.T. RIGHT for the Services in
the amount listed in the payment schedule
(Appendix A). This fee shall be payable in
full within 30 days unless otherwise notated
in this document.

6. PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES. I.T.
RIGHT shall determine the manner in which
the Services are to be performed and the
specific hours to be worked by I.T. RIGHT.
The Client will rely on I.T. RIGHT to work
as many hours as may be reasonably
necessary to fulfill I.T. RIGHT's obligations
under this Agreement.

10/01/2022



P a g e  | 2
7. LIABILITY LIMITATIONS. The
client agrees that in no event shall IT
Right, Its Officers or Directors, be liable
for any damages of any kind, including
but not limited to any direct, indirect,
incidental, special or punitive damages.
The exclusive remedy for any breach of
this agreement is limited to an amount
equivalent to three monthly payments.
In the event of extreme error or
negligence, damages will be limited to
the limits of the liability insurance
referred to in section eight. Further, IT
Right also agrees that damages from the
client may in no circumstances exceed an
amount equivalent to three monthly
payments of the contract.  Thus, under
no circumstances will either party be
liable to the other for damages that
exceed the value of three-monthly
payments.

8. INSURANCE. During the Term, I.T.
Right shall procure and maintain the
following insurance coverage: (a) workers’
compensation and employer’s liability
insurance as required by the laws of the
State in which the Services are being
performed, (b) comprehensive general
liability insurance in the amount that is
commercially reasonable with respect to the
Services, and (c) cyber-liability insurance in
the amount that is commercially reasonable
with respect to the Services.
The Client shall not rely exclusively on I.T.
Right for insurance or as an insurance
provider; but shall procure and maintain its
own insurance coverage (or agree to accept
risk itself) as follows: cyber-liability
insurance in the amount that is commercially
reasonable with respect to The Client’s
servers, hardware, software, data and/or
computer networks.

9. THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY

LEFT BLANK.

10. CLIENT NEW PROJECT

APPROVAL.  I.T. RIGHT and The Client
recognize that I.T. RIGHT's Services will
include working on various projects for The
Client.  I.T. RIGHT shall obtain the
approval of the Client prior to the
commencement of a new project.

11. Site Liaison/Primary Contact. The
Client agrees to assign one employee or
elected official to be the primary contact
person to I.T. Right.   The roll of the
Primary Contact shall be to, (i) Meet and
discuss with I.T. Right status of projects and
initiatives (ii) Communicate to I.T. Right the
decisions of The Client including but not
limited to technology policies and their
enforcement, (iii) Approve quotes or
communicate the same to I.T. Right.
Should the client fail to appoint a Primary
Contact, The Client agrees that I.T. Right
may work with any elected official in these
capacities.

12. Other Client Appointed Contacts. I.T.
Right recognizes The Client may for
compliance, legal, or other reasons appoint
individuals other than the primary contact to
positions of responsibility concerning line of
business technology concerns.   These
positions include but are not limited to
“CJIS Officer” and “FOIA Officer.”    I.T.
Right will work with these individuals as it
pertains to their reasonably assigned duties.
The Client represents that I.T. Right can
depend on these individuals for guidance
pertaining to their respective areas of
responsibility.



P a g e  | 3
13. TERM/TERMINATION. This
Agreement shall be effective for  
year(s).  Continuation of and payment for
services beyond this agreement stated term
will constitute a renewal 1 year under the
existing terms. Either party reserves the
right to terminate this contract at any time
provided 90 days’ notice is given.  The
remaining time will be prorated and paid to
the client within 120 days of receipt of the
termination notice.

14. EMPLOYEES.  I.T. RIGHT's
employees, if any, who perform services for
The Client under this Agreement shall also
be bound by the provisions of this
Agreement.

15. Employment Restrictions. The Client
shall not solicit to hire, hire or engage any of
IT RIGHT’S employees (or anyone
employed by IT RIGHT in the prior twelve
calendar months) while this Agreement is in
effect and for the twelve-calendar month
period immediately after termination or
completion of this Agreement for any
reason.  If Client does solicit to hire, hire or
engage any of the IT RIGHT’S employees,
The Client shall immediately pay Company
an amount equal to 100% of the then-current
or most recent annual salary or wages paid
by Company to such employee.

16. NOTICES.  All notices required or
permitted under this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be deemed delivered when
delivered in person or deposited in the
United States mail, postage prepaid,
addressed as follows:

IF for The Client:

IF for I.T. RIGHT: 

I.T. Right
Dan Eggleston
Director of Information Technology
5815 East Clark Road Suite G
Bath Michigan 48808

Either party may change such address from 
time to time, by providing written notice to 
the other in the manner set forth above.

17. CPI-Index At the expiration of this
contract period and each year thereafter, the
rates described in “Appendix A” will be
adjusted by 4% or by a CPI factor,
whichever is greater.  For the purposes of
this document the CPI shall be defined by
and will not exceed the US BLS
Unadjusted annual rate for the most
recently reported 12-month period.

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This
Agreement contains the entire agreement of
the parties and there are no other promises
or conditions in any other agreement
whether oral or written.  This Agreement
supersedes any prior written or oral
agreements between the parties.

19. AMENDMENT.  This Agreement may
be modified or amended if the amendment is
made in writing and is signed by both
parties.

 THREE



P a g e  | 4

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  The laws of the State of Michigan shall govern this Agreement.

Party receiving services:

Accepted By:  

Title:  

Party providing services:  I.T. Right

Proposed By   
Dan Eggleston, Founder



P a g e  | 5

Appendix A:  Price Sheet:

Year Amount Term/Option

$39,360 + $4,000 one-time Onboarding

$39,360

$39,360

2022 Regular Term

2023 Regular Term

2024 Regular Term



Ada Township

IT Support



2

Who is I.T. Right

 Head Quartered in Bath, Michigan

 100% U.S. Based Help Desk

 50 IT professionals across Michigan and beyond

 Focused on Government only

 Experts in the Government Vertical space

 BS&A Recommended 

 CJIS (Criminal Justice Info System) / LEIN (Law Enforcement Info Network) 

Compliant



IT Right Serves

450+ local 

government 

entities under 

contract

3



4

What to Expect

1. Knowledge—Culture of learning, intellectual honesty, Best idea wins

2. Leadership—Use of our knowledge to serve and guide others

3. Transparency---No politics, no hidden agendas

4. Dependability—Set and exceed expectations, there when needed

5. Ownership—Our duty, our responsibility, our problem, our victory

Our Motto is bad English but good advice

“BE EASY TO DO BUSINESS WITH”

Core Values



5

World Class Support

 Local, Unlimited, U.S.-based help desk

 Enhanced with Secure, FIPS compliant, remote access by I.T. Right Technicians

 Enhanced with FCR team as of September ‘22.

 Unlimited field response

 Automated systems monitoring

 Windows and 3rd party patch management

 Secure managed remote backup of data

 Enhanced with Image based Backups

 Monitored Endpoint Detection & Response

 Enhanced with live 24/7 SOC center monitoring

 Anti-Ransomware / Quarantine

 Enhanced with AI that can stop “Zero Day” threats

 Enhanced with Rollback Technology



6

Focused on Cyber Security

 Our primary goal is your security

 Immediate response to cyber attacks

 The threat landscape has changed.  Ransomware attacks are

up over 66% in the local government space

 3 out of 4 attacks are against local government

 City of Keene was held up for $2.5 Million in ransom

 Gas Pipeline attack last year

 Water Supply attack in Florida

 Multiple attacks in MI



https://www.npr.org/2019/08/20/752695554/23-texas-towns-hit-with-ransomware-attack-in-new-front-of-cyberassault

"They got into our software provider, the guys who run our IT systems," Heinrich said. "A 
lot of folks in Texas use providers to do that because we don't have a staff big enough to 
have IT in house."

https://www.bleepingcomputer.com/news/security/hackers-want-25-million-ransom-for-texas-ransomware-attacks/

“Keene Mayor Gary Heinrich said that the threat actor demanded $2.5 million in exchange 
for the key that decrypts the locked files.” Keene is a city of 6,440 people.

https://www.zdnet.com/article/at-least-20-texas-local-governments-hit-in-coordinated-ransomware-attack/

“SODINOKIBI RANSOMWARE BLAMED FOR INCIDENT

Initially, ZDNet learned from a local source that the ransomware that infected the networks 

of the 23 local Texas governments encrypted files and then added the.JSE extension at the 
end.”

S1 Catching and rolling back Sodinokibi…(S1 video)
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=PfYAPbj3UQA&t=5s



8

Proactive Account Management

 Dedicated Technical Alignment Manager (TAM)

 Proactive alignment emphasizing Industry Standard Best Practices

 Dedicated Virtual Chief Information Officer (VCIO) /Senior Account
Manager

 End User Security Training and Phishing Campaign

 Project management

 Dedicated Projects Team

 Increased Helpdesk and Field Staffing

 Adding a live 3rd shift in Q4 2022

Center for Internet Security (CIS)

 Benchmark testing and Controls implementation

 Compliant with State of MI and State Police recommended Security Measures



9

Technical Alignment Manager (TAM)

TAM: Technology Alignment Manager 

 Is responsible for standards and alignment of technology

The TAM is your most technical resource

A TAM takes a methodical and detailed approach

The TAM is the person who goes on site (or virtually, in

pandemic times) and answers questions about the client

having the right things in place

The TAM is gathering information to give to the vCIO. They

will make judgement calls on the severity of any situation



10

Security and Infrastructure Audits
New Initiatives

Pro-Active Network Admin & 

VCIO Visits
300+ Industry 

Best Practices Audited and 

Remediated

CJIS/HIPPA/PCI Audits.

Center for Internet Security 

MS-ISAC/EI-ISAC

State of Michigan Cyber 

Security Partnerships



11

Virtual Chief Information Officer - VCIO

vCIO: Virtual Chief Information Officer –

The vCIO is responsible for owning the business impact

and strategic client relationship

The vCIO bridges the gap between the technology

alignment information and what is important to the client

The vCIO, with the TAM, decide how vulnerable a client is

based on the questions and answers received by the TAM

and present projects, solutions, and ideas to the customer

using the Strategic Roadmap

The vCIO acts as an ombudsman for the client



12

Strategic Roadmap

I.T. Right will help with development of a strategic roadmap of projects and

regularly scheduled replacements of equipment.



13

Strategic Roadmap

I.T. Right will help with development of 

recommendations and development of a budget.



14

Center for Internet Security (CIS)



Reducing Your Attackable Footprint

 Shifting to a Security First Mindset

 Setting Corporate Policies

 Setting Network Policies

 Reigning in Rouge IT

 Just Enough, Just In Time System and File Rights

 Patch it/Update it or Remove it.

 Taking a layered approach to security



16

Measurable Support
Survey Sent / Completed: Oct-01-2021 9:45 AM 
(EST) / Oct-01-2021 10:01 AM (EST)

Survey Score:            5.00 out of 5.00

========== Survey Results ==========

Question 1: How would you rate the timeliness of 
the initial response to your issue?

Response: 5

Question 2: How would you rate the timeliness of 
the resolution of your issue?

Response: 5

Question 3: Was the problem or task resolved to 
your satisfaction?

Response: 5

Question 4: How would you rate the support 
representative's ability?

Response: 5

Question 5: How would you rate the support 
representative's professionalism?

Response: 5

Question 6: How satisfied were you with the overall 
service you received?

Response: 5

Question: 7.  Did we explain the problem to your 
satisfaction?

Response: Everything was explained nicely, I 
understood all of it

Question: 8. Will you call again?

Response: 5

Question: 9. How likely are you to recommend us to 
others?

Response: 5

Question 10: Please add any other comments.

Response: Andrew helped me with my issue and 
insured I had the best access to my email account. 
More than I needed done and the extra effort was 
appreciated. 



17

What Our Client’s Say
 Just a note to say that Ken Young came out and worked diligently with his team to get

the city website issue resolved. In my judgment he did an excellent job and should be

commended. We certainly appreciate it and this goes out to Ken and the team from me

and the City of Fraser.

Best,

Vincent Neyland

Assistant City Manager/Finance Director

 I am a new customer. I have 38 yrs of Corporate Experience before entering into the

Township and Your IT Support is AMAZING. Very Impressed with Knowledge, Customer

Service, and Dispatch. - Eric, Alamo Twp.

 Andrew was awesome. My wait time on the phone and his resolution to my problem

was done in less then ten minutes. Very appreciative of his help! - Daria, OPC



18

Case Study – IT Problems

City of Hamtramck

Problem: 

The entire network was aging and causing widespread problems. Slowness and 
downtime were a normal part of each day. Productivity was at an all time low. 

Solution:

Performed detailed needs analysis.  Worked with the City to apply for grants to 
upgrade all technology in the city. Once the grant was in place, I.T. Right worked 
with the City to plan a complete overhaul of the network. The plan was 
implemented (in stages) over a 6-month period.

Results:

Network is now stable, and staff is much more productive.  The City experiences 
very little downtime and staff is much happier.



Huntress Labs is a 

blended Artificial 

Intelligence security 

solution.   It uses a blend 

of AI and actual 

technicians to review and 

research potential 

threats.  They then report 

them back to IT Right for 

with instructions for 

remediation.







Backup AND Disaster Recovery

 321 Rule of Backup

 3 Copies of your Data

 2 Backups

 1 Offsite Backup (Automated & Air Gapped)

 VSS enabled for quick items

 Application Backup/Not just files

 Local Appliances Speed Disaster Recovery

 At least one storage location must be air gapped

 No USB Drives

 No Backup to the SAN

 Backup must be permanently separate

 CJIS Needs FIPS Validated Encryption



 VPN Remote Access Only

 Robust/Certified Encryption Levels

 MGMT Approval

 Users & Access Method

 Vendor Access Limited

 Just Enough/Just In Time

 All remote users need

 Complex Passwords

 Force Password Changes

 Force Lockout and Alert on wrong guess

 Criminal Justice must be FIPS compliant.



 Enterprise Class Firewalls

 Stateful Packet Inspection

 Next Gen Intrusion Prevention

 Block Malicious Sites at the Gateway

 Stops malware from getting in

 Block TOR

 Stops malware from getting

access to require rouge servers.



Landing Pages are 

bold, obvious and contain

highlighted areas revealing

the red flags that could have

Tipped them off.

At the end of each campaign

a list of “clickers” is developed

and associated training videos 

are recommended as a remedial 

training action. 

Pre-training clicking averages

between 15% & 25% of emails

sent.



Hundreds of Interactive 

online security courses

covering multiple subjects.

Video courses range from 

4-45 minutes, and vary in

complexity/difficulty.

Video courses require user

interaction, and contain

quizzes throughout.

Results are audited and can

be sent to mgmt. for review.



27

Projects Team



28

Onboarding Process





30

What the Future Holds
 IT Right has partnered with VC3 and is expanding our capabilities

 Now part of the largest IT MSP in the nation

 Representing 1000 municipalities in 23 States

 Benefits Coming Soon:

 Added Helpdesk Staff here in MI.

 Adding 3rd shift for true 24/7 LIVE (CJIS certified) Support

 Phone Systems, Custom Programming, and more

BHAG:  1 Billion Protected User Days by 2032!



Thank you for your time



Page 1 of 3 

Township Manager Report for September 21, 2022 
Submitted by Township Manager Julius Suchy

Audit Deficiency Letter: 
Under the consent agenda I have provided a copy of the letter the Township received from the 
Department of Treasury related to deficiencies identified in our audit. Auditor Dan Veldhuizen 
will discuss this letter when presenting the audit to the Township Board.  

Supervisor Leisman, Clerk Smith, Treasurer Moran, Accountant Cassie Rodriguez and I met 
with Mr. Veldhuizen last week to review the audit and discuss improvements that can be made 
over the next year to ensure the Township doesn’t have any audit deficiencies and the Township 
rely less on auditor adjustments.   

Potential Items to Be Added to 9/26 Board Agenda:  
The BGU Committee will be reviewing the following items at their meeting on 9/22: 

• Ada Drive Change Order #1 from Katerberg Verhage & Pay Application
• Ada Drive Liquidated Damages
• Adatowne Watermain Project Phase III Completion Date Extension Request
• Adatowne Watermain Additional Engineering Fee Request from Moore+Bruggink

Depending on the outcome of these discussions they might be added to the board agenda and e-
mailed out on Friday 9/23 for the board meeting on Monday.  

Kent County Trail Summit Update: 
Ada Township will be participating in the Kent County Trail Summit on Wednesday September 
28th. Ada has been invited to be one of the communities that will be presenting to the rest of the 
County showcasing the trails work that is currently being completed and what is being looked at 
for the upcoming years.   

Kent County Animal Control Ordinance: 
Kent County has shifted animal control oversight from the Health Department to the Kent 
County Sheriff Department. With this change Kent County has adopted an animal control 
ordinance that the Sheriff Department will be able to enforce throughout the county.  

Supervisor Leisman and I met with Lieutenant John Degroot to discuss the changes and he 
provided a draft copy of the ordinance. Since Ada Township has its own animal control 
ordinance, the Sheriff department will not be able to enforce the Kent County ordinance.  

Staff is in the process of reviewing our ordinance and what could be moved to other sections of 
the code while allowing improved assistance from the Sheriffs department under the new county 
ordinance. This will be presented to the Township board following review by the admin 
committee.   

XII A



Page 2 of 3 

H2S Study Update:  
Moore+Bruggink is finalizing the H2S report and anticipates it will be completed in the next few 
weeks. Once the study is complete the building, grounds, utilities committee will review and 
follow up with any questions prior to Moore+Bruggink presenting this report to the Township 
Board.  

Committee Updates: 
• Trail Committee - The next committee meeting has not been scheduled. Staff is waiting

for additional information from Moore+Bruggink to make sure the committee has plenty
of time to review information as opposed to receiving it the day before the meeting.

• Public Safety Committee – At the August 30th meeting the committee discussed moving
forward with a purchase of a rescue boat (likely on the October 10th agenda) as well as
moving forward with purchase of a truck computer and then budgeting for two more next
year to replace the three that are no longer in service. The old truck computers were
purchased used from Walker several years ago and are no longer operational. The
committee also discussed wages related to full time lieutenants and Chief Murray and I
will be reviewing and then report back before discussing with the personnel committee
and then the Township Board.

• Personnel Committee – A meeting of the committee needs to be scheduled to review a
draft a employee evaluation process for the Township to utilize.

2nd Shift Maintenance Position Job Posting Update:  
The Township has hired Matt Donald as our second shift buildings, facilities and grounds 
maintenance position. Many of you may know Mr. Donald as he is a part-time firefighter for Ada 
Township. Mr. Donald will start on Monday September 26th and will start on a regular shift for 
training purposes and then move to second shift once training has been completed. We are very 
excited to have Matt join our maintenance staff.  

Mobile Antenna Updates: 
I am currently working on two proposals related to mobile antennas for the Township: 

• Dish Wireless did a site assessment last week to confirm there were no issues with
potential placement on the Ada Drive water tower. I anticipate this lease proposal being
presented to the Township Board at the October 10th board meeting.

• I followed up with AT&T on their monthly lease rate. In 2014 the Township was
approached by a company that renegotiates leases and if they get the community to agree
to a cut, they get paid by the mobile provider. The Township reduces its monthly lease
rate and extended the agreement through 2044.

• Following approval of the T-Mobile extension I will be following up with T-Mobile to
execute all documents related to the extension.

Amy Van Andel Library – Ada Community Center Update: 
• Maintenance Items –

o Waiting on an update from Erhardt Construction on roof leak where the building
was modified to add the hallway near the children’s area.



Page 3 of 3 

o Rooftop Unit – New valves were installed this past week. DHE has been working
with the factory that built the rooftop units to try and optimize operation without
downtime.

o Reviewing options for portable coat racks for fall/winter season.
o New art rails have been installed on the lower level to allow for artist displays
o Staff is working with the original AV installer to explore option of making floor

plugs in community rooms flush to ground eliminating the trip hazard. Also
exploring addition of handheld microphones.

• Rental Items –
o Lobby Rental Policy – a draft of the lobby rental policy has been created and is

currently being reviewed by the Parks Department who handles rentals of all
Township facilities before presenting this policy to the admin committee.


	O-092622-1-Rezone-Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC (Packet).pdf
	Memo to TB-Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC Preliminary PUD Plan-09-20-22.pdf
	MEMORANDUM


	R-092622-2 Resolution Approving Hidden Lakes at Ada, LLC PUD Plan (Packet).pdf
	Staff Report 09-15-22 - PUD - Preliminary - 3201 Egypt Valley.pdf
	MEMORANDUM


	Fire Boots Purchase (Packet).pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	Fire Turnout Gear Purchase (Packet).pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	IT Right Managed IT Services (Packet).pdf
	MEMORANDUM




